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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2015, 1:21 P.M. 

2 ***** 
3 (Outside the presence of the jury.) 

4 THE COURT: Okay. So we left off you were talking 

5 about the records from -- the photographs from the Las Vegas 

6 Metropolitan Police Department, correct? 

7 MR. SIMON: Correct. Basically how this came about 

8 lS when preparing for trial and looking at all of the evidence 

9 there were a lot of pictures produced of the cars. We assumed 

10 the Defendant's vehicle was one of them. They were not. And 

11 so we confirmed with Mr. Baird and his client -- Farmers? 

12 MR. BAIRD: State Farm. 

13 MR. SIMON: State Farm. They don't have any pictures 

14 ln their file, and he went and looked through them and 

15 confirmed that. So looking at the police report we noticed 

16 that the police did take pictures of the scene, so we 

17 requested those. We got them. We handed them over last week. 

18 And so my position is is that the police report was 

19 produced. All the witnesses and officers on the police report 

20 were produced at the very beginning. We both equally had 

21 access to the pictures and the statements attached to the 

22 police report. 

23 So I understand they're late and after the discovery 

24 cut-off, but they existed at the time, both parties had 

25 access, and it wasn't until recently we didn't realize we 
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1 didn't have any pictures of the Defendant because there were a 

2 lot of pictures produced. And, ln fact, there was a third 

3 vehicle that was produced and then initially it was 

4 represented as if it was her vehicle and then he corrected 

5 that in a pleading after that, so that --that's the issue, 

6 Judge. 

7 MR. BAIRD: Your Honor, first off, my client lS Ms. 

8 Pizarro-Ortega over there, not State Farm. But, more 

9 importantly, in December -- well, I guess it was in late 

10 November, the parties signed a stipulation to continue trial 

11 and in that stipulation there was a date certain for all 

12 supplementations of witnesses, documents and reports. All the 

13 parties signed that. Your Honor signed that. It became an 

14 effective order. 

15 They did not -- they did not produce it. We 

16 supplemented the surveillance video at that point. They 

17 supplemented nothing. They had three years to get these 

18 pictures and they didn't, and now it's late. 

19 Now, the other lssue to consider, Your Honor, is what 

20 lS the probative value. We've admitted fault. Their doctors' 

21 testimony has been limited vla motions in limine and they 

22 don't get to testify about biomechanical opinions. 

23 So there are pictures of the Plaintiffs' vehicle that 

24 are already admitted, we've agreed to that, and I fail to see 

25 the purpose of admitting additional pictures that were 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
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1 produced late, as well as I think weren't the -- I think that 

2 the witness statements were also obtained at the same time, 

3 which is what? Two weeks before trial. 

4 It's egregiously late. They had ample opportunity. 

5 The fact that either party could have requested them doesn't 

6 change the fact that they simply failed to comply with the 

7 rules. 

8 THE COURT: Tell me what the prejudice is. 

9 MR. BAIRD: Well, the prejudice is it encourages the 

10 Jury to assign [inaudible] and assign relevance to pictures 

11 that really mean nothing. They have pictures of the 

12 Plaintiffs' vehicle. 

13 Plaintiff, I guess, should tell you what material 

14 fact is going to be supported by these late-obtained pictures 

15 and statements when we've admitted fault and there's no 

16 biomechanical experts at all in this case, especially where 

17 we've already taken longer than we expected on every aspect of 

18 this case. The less extraneous evidence, I say the better. 

19 THE COURT: Let me ask this -- hold on a second. One 

20 of the arguments has been by Defense counsel that this lS 

21 you haven't used the word "minor," but it's not a huge motor 

22 vehicle accident as far as cases go, okay? So are you golng 

23 to --what's your argument golng to be? 

24 Are you golng to get up there and argue that the --

25 well, you're admitting fault. So are you going to argue that 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
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1 the forces involved in the accident were not sufficient to 

2 cause the injuries to the Plaintiff or that the Plaintiff had 

3 a huge pre-existing condition? So what's your position? 

4 MR. BAIRD: My position is not really going to be 

5 related to the force of the accident. My position is going to 

6 be these pictures don't show lnJury. That's all. That's --

7 that's not an injury, that's a car accident; and the doctors 

8 are going to have to diagnose the injury and glve us good 

9 evidence on causation. 

10 But, you know, we have -- if we're golng to be 

11 allowing in evidence that was disclosed late, I mean, our 

12 video should come ln. 

13 MR. SIMON: And, Judge, there's a complete 

14 distinction to that. Their video that they, I guess, 

15 surreptitiously taped with the sub rosa with an investigator, 

16 they never disclosed until a couple weeks before trial. That 

17 --what? 

18 MR. BAIRD: Until December. We disclosed ln 

19 December. 

20 MR. SIMON: Okay. That evidence is something that's 

21 manufactured by them that was taken by them. The person who 

22 did it and the report they did is by a person retained by 

23 them. That is something that is completely different. That's 

24 evidence that they went out and got on their own. I didn't 

25 have access to this. 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
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1 The investigative photos are something both of us had 

2 access to. It was all disclosed in the police report. And 

3 Dr. Duke received that police report and the photos of my 

4 clients' vehicle, and in his IME report he does discuss that 

5 this is a minor impact and his injuries are -- or his opinions 

6 are this accident didn't cause these injuries. 

7 And so I think it's important to say, hey, you need 

8 to see both cars --

9 THE COURT: Two questions. 

10 MR. SIMON: Sure. 

11 THE COURT: Number one, I don't think you're the 

12 original attorney, but do you know: Was the police report 

13 must have been obtained by subpoena otherwise you'd have like 

14 lines across it. So was the police report request --

15 specifically requested from the police department and it just 

16 did not include the entirety? 

17 I mean, usually -- let me spit it out. Usually 

18 you're requesting everything related to the investigation of 

19 that event number. Is that what happened in your case --

20 MR. SIMON: I don't know. Mr. --

21 THE COURT: -- and they only sent -- Metro sent parts 

22 of it? 

23 MR. SIMON: Yeah, Mr. Lavigne did the initial filing 

24 of the complaint and handled that part of it. But typically 

25 you'll request a police report, they give that back to you, 
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1 and then you'll see the little boxes at the bottom, photos 

2 taken, yes; statements taken, yes; and then I think you have 

3 to re-request that. 

4 THE COURT: I haven't requested records in a long 

5 time. Do they require that you request them separately? 

6 Because they used to just request it under the event number. 

7 I mean, you would request the police report and that would 

8 include everything but the officer's notes. 

9 MR. SIMON: I'm not exactly sure what he did. You 

10 know, of course, we want the -- the report and everything that 

11 comes with it, but the report itself was the only thing that 

12 came in, and that's been fully disclosed from the very 

13 beginning. And the fact that there were photos and witness 

14 statements that were part of the investigation, you know, they 

15 knew about equally from the very beginning. 

16 THE COURT: Did you get the statements when you got 

17 the police report? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 just got 

24 

25 

MR. SIMON: I did. 

THE COURT: 

MR. SIMON: 

MR. BAIRD: 

MR. SIMON: 

the photos. 

MR. BAIRD: 

MR. SIMON: 

You just didn't get the photographs. 

No, no. 

You just got the statements. 

No, no. I just got the statements 

Recently. 

Recently. 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
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1 THE COURT: Okay. 

2 MR. SIMON: Yeah, within the last couple weeks. The 

3 report itself we did get at the very beginning. That's been 

4 disclosed. 

5 THE COURT: How did Dr. Duke get the photographs and 

6 the statements? 

7 MR. BAIRD: He didn't have the photographs that they 

8 just got. He has the photographs that we've already agreed 

9 will be admitted, photographs of the Plaintiff's' vehicle. 

10 MR. SIMON: So that --

11 MR. BAIRD: Under your order, Your Honor, regarding 

12 biomechanical opinions -- I mean, he's not going to be able to 

13 testify any differently than Dr. Lanzkowsky, who has also 

14 reviewed the photographs. So, I mean, that's already there 

15 and the two doctors are going to testify -- based on 

16 objections maybe they're going to be limited, but it's the 

17 same thing. 

18 Additional pictures do nothing. They do absolutely 

19 nothing. What we end up with, though, is trial by ambush 

20 because just weeks before trial, like ten days, they're 

21 discovering new evidence that they're now trying to 

22 incorporate into their case, which we have no -- for years no 

23 idea that this was going to be an issue, and now we don't know 

24 how they're going to use it. And and, like I said, I don't 

25 see a material fact to which you can apply any of this 
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1 evidence. 

2 THE COURT: Are you golng to introduce the repalr 

3 estimate? 

4 MR. BAIRD: There isn't a repalr estimate. That's 

5 another problem. The -- what we have is documentation from 

6 when State Farm totaled the vehicle, but we don't have a 

7 repair estimate. They don't have a repair estimate. There's 

8 no repair estimate. So all we --

9 MR. SIMON: The estimate -- I'm sorry. 

10 MR. BAIRD: Pardon? So we don't have anything that 

11 actually shows any structural damage to the car. All we have 

12 is what you can see from the outside. 

13 THE COURT: They totaled out the vehicle? 

14 MR. BAIRD: They did total out the vehicle. 

15 MR. SIMON: And-- and I guess what we don't have, 

16 which we always have, is the picture of both vehicles that are 

17 involved in that accident. And I think that's imperative for 

18 Dr. Duke who's going to get up there and say these injuries 

19 weren't caused from this accident, and he describes the damage 

20 to their vehicle as minor in his report. And so that is a 

21 basis for his opinion. 

22 Whether it's a biomechanical oplnlon, of course, he's 

23 not talking about specific forces, but he certainly needs to 

24 have a foundation of the type of accident. And to say, oh, 

25 well, I saw the Plaintiffs' vehicle only and that's what my 
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1 oplnlon lS based on and not both vehicles involved in the 

2 accident because, I mean, that's what this is about. It's 

3 MR. BAIRD: But, Your Honor, here's the thing. Dr. 

4 Duke has only seen the pictures that are admitted. So that 

5 means whether his opinions are reasonable or not, he would be 

6 surprised at trial or surprised very soon by having to 

7 possibly change his opinion based on evidence that should have 

8 been disclosed years ago and wasn't. And it's the same with 

9 their doctors. 

10 So they're trying to surprlse and impeach someone and 

11 say, You thought this looked minor, now look at all this other 

12 stuff; and that's unfair as well. We have timely disclosed 

13 Dr. Duke. He's reviewed all the evidence. The fact is 

14 they're trying to turn late-disclosed evidence into something 

15 that is, a, very important to their case and, b, something 

16 that will be prejudicial to the Defendant. 

17 They're doing it years after it should have been 

18 disclosed. They had notice from the outset that the traffic 

19 accident report might have additional information. They 

20 didn't get it. They didn't decide to do anything about it 

21 until not only after discovery closed, Your Honor, but after 

22 they signed a stipulation that would have allowed them to get 

23 this information and disclose it back in December. Still 

24 didn't do it. 

25 And now just a week before trial we're hit with more 
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1 treatment records, more photos, witness statements that nobody 

2 has seen until just now. 

3 THE COURT: Hold on. Let's focus. We're golng 

4 beyond what we started. The treatment records we're not 

5 discussing in this conversation. 

6 MR. BAIRD: Right. 

7 MR. SIMON: Right. 

8 THE COURT: Let's discuss the photos. I -- I'm golng 

9 to allow them, and I'll tell you why. I have a hard time 

10 believing that it's a real surprise to the insurance company 

11 about whatever's depicted on those photographs. 

12 The bottom line is after that accident was involved, 

13 the insurance company had the ability to have that vehicle 

14 inspected, to inspect it itself. In fact, there was obviously 

15 an inspection done because they came to the determination that 

16 the vehicle was a total loss. 

17 So I'm kind of at a loss to even guess how-- what 

18 they had the ability to see and they've probably already seen 

19 lS any different than what's depicted in the photos. 

20 MR. BAIRD: Your Honor, I --

21 THE COURT: Secondarily -- hold on -- as far as the 

22 police report, I think it's distinctive from the sub rosa. 

23 Sub rosa was done by the Defense counsel or -- I don't know if 

24 you're the one who did it or the insurance company ordered it, 

25 but the sub rosa was done. 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
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1 It was known -- you knew what -- you knew it was 

2 done. It was something you possessed and had knowledge of and 

3 yet it wasn't turned over. I don't know if it was you or the 

4 lnsurance company, but the insurance company should have 

5 turned it over to you guys if you asked and they had it. 

6 But the difference is is Plaintiff requested that 

7 police report, and Metro, which I've seen them do before, they 

8 didn't send the entirety of the police report. So I am going 

9 to allow it. I just simply don't see how there's a prejudice. 

10 MR. BAIRD: But, Your Honor, one thing, though. 

11 You've you're --you're making your decision based on what 

12 you think the insurance company, a non-party, could have found 

13 out. Plaintiff, a party who owned that vehicle also could 

14 have found this out. They also could have gotten an estimate 

15 on the car. They could have requested and gotten their own 

16 they have an estimate probably. I mean, that's how these 

17 things get done. 

18 THE COURT: Wait. The photographs are of his 

19 vehicle, the Defendant's vehicle? 

20 

21 

22 

23 taken --

24 

25 

MR. SIMON: Both vehicles 

MR. BAIRD: Both vehicles. 

MR. SIMON: -- at the scene. They're just pictures 

MR. BAIRD: Really all three vehicles. 

MR. SIMON: Yeah, all three vehicles at the scene. 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
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1 So it shows the jury really the full picture of the accident 

2 at the scene, which is imperative to everything that flows 

3 from there. 

4 MR. BAIRD: But, Your Honor, to put this on the 

5 insurance company, I mean, they have -- we all requested the 

6 same police report. We all ended up with the same police 

7 report without those photos, without those statements. To 

8 say, well, the lnsurance company could have done something 

9 different, that's putting--

10 THE COURT: That's not what I'm saylng. As far as 

11 the photographs of your vehicle, I don't frankly see how 

12 that's going to surprlse anyone. I mean, we all -- I mean, 

13 the insurance lS not admissible in the trial. We all know 

14 that when one of our vehicles is involved in an accident, they 

15 get an estimate on it, they make the decision whether or not 

16 to total it or repair it. 

17 And so they-- I mean, there was-- I-- I don't know 

18 where there's a shock, at least with respect to your vehicle, 

19 because the insurance company, I'm sure their estimates are 

20 going to be whatever is reflected in the photographs of your 

21 vehicle. 

22 MR. BAIRD: We don't have any estimates of my 

23 client's vehicle. So we --

24 THE COURT: Well, there's something that came to the 

25 decision totaling it out. 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
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1 MR. BAIRD: I don't think we have anything. 

2 THE COURT: But let me see the photographs. I mean, 

3 I don't see -- and then the Plaintiffs'. Okay. So what does 

4 the photograph just show? The three vehicles involved? 

5 MR. SIMON: Yeah, it shows --

6 MR. BAIRD: In dark lighting. 

7 MR. SIMON: Yeah, it happened at night. Shows the 

8 accident scene. Shows all three vehicles that were involved 

9 in the accident. 

10 THE COURT: Presumably you already have photographs 

11 of your client's vehicle that were timely turned over. 

12 MR. SIMON: Correct. 

13 MR. BAIRD: They're admitted. We -- we've stipulated 

14 to them. 

15 MR. SIMON: So this lS only the pictures of at the 

16 accident scene by the police that show her vehicle. And --

17 and the 

18 THE COURT: "Her" being the Defendant? 

19 MR. SIMON: Yes. Sorry about that. And the need 

20 that we have is because they did not take any pictures and I 

21 don't think that they can benefit from not taking pictures and 

22 turning that over. 

23 They did take pictures, coincidentally, of my 

24 clients' vehicle. They did take pictures of the third 

25 vehicle. They just omitted her pictures. And so, you know, 
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1 we assumed that they -- in all of those pictures -- there were 

2 a ton of them -- included hers, but then we realized it 

3 didn't, so we raced and got these. 

4 MR. BAIRD: Well, a little bit of diligence would 

5 have prevented all of this years ago. I mean, they could have 

6 gotten it. There was no obfuscation or hiding. 

7 MR. MICHALEK: Your Honor, I understand your ruling; 

8 but, you know, I just want to make a motion that pursuant to 

9 the same rule, you know, the video surveillance gets 

10 introduced. It was timely produced in December, according to 

11 the stipulation that we had between the parties. So I think 

12 that's the misconception that we didn't turn it over. We 

13 turned it over to prior counsel and we turned it over prlor to 

14 the --

15 THE COURT: I have to go back and look. 

16 MR. MICHALEK: -- to the January 

17 MR. SIMON: What stipulation are you referring to? 

18 MR. BAIRD: The stipulation to continue trial that 

19 set a new deadline for supplementation of documents, expert 

20 oplnlons and everything, and then it set another date for 

21 pretrial motions. I mean, that was one of the things we 

22 argued at the -- your most recent motion in limine hearing. 

23 We said this is -- this is [inaudible] . 

24 THE COURT: Let me go back and look at the dates. My 

25 recollection on that would have been that it was -- it was 
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1 post -- it was after the time for discovery to close, if I am 

2 correct. I will go back and look. 

3 MR. BAIRD: Sure. But just to be clear, we -- my 

4 office, neither myself nor anyone ln my office ordered that 

5 surveillance. That was something the insurance company did 

6 and they thought they had glven it to me and I didn't know 

7 about it until they said, Well, why --

8 THE COURT: I don't think you did it. 

9 MR. BAIRD: Right. 

10 THE COURT: I think that it just sometimes happens, 

11 unfortunately. 

12 MR. MICHALEK: And just for the point of the record 

13 that the -- if we're going to allow the impeachment of Dr. 

14 Duke with evidence that was submitted afterwards, I think it's 

15 only fair that we get to use impeachment evidence against the 

16 Plaintiff, i.e., the surveillance video. 

17 THE COURT: It depends. 

18 MR. MICHALEK: I -- and I understand. 

19 THE COURT: Again, I think that for the reasons I've 

20 previously indicated, I think that the situations are markedly 

21 different; however, like I said, if -- if you guys agreed to 

22 extend the discovery deadline and it was to a later date and 

23 it was turned over prior to the discovery deadline, then I 

24 would reconsider my oplnlon. That was not my recollection. 

25 MR. SIMON: But just so we're clear, Your Honor, we 
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1 did bring a motion to exclude the sub rosa. You granted that. 

2 THE COURT: Yeah, I don't remember the reasons, 

3 though. 

4 MR. SIMON: Oh. Well, the --

5 THE COURT: I mean, my assumption 

6 MR. SIMON: the reasons would -- they had --

7 THE COURT: would have been because it was 

8 untimely. 

MR. SIMON: 9 Well, they had it --

MR. BAIRD: 10 That was your -- that was your order. 

MR. SIMON: 11 They had it for a year, and then ln 

12 December for a January trial is when they disclose it and you 

13 didn't serve it on me. You served it on prior counsel. So 

14 when I came to that motion, I didn't even-- I hadn't even 

15 seen the video. 

16 THE COURT: Was it prlor to the time for the closing 

17 of discovery? 

18 MR. SIMON: It was -- it was after the close of 

19 discovery. 

20 THE COURT: Okay. That is my recollection. If I'm 

21 hearing Defense counsel correctly, they're saying something 

22 different. 

23 MR. MICHALEK: Correct, Your Honor. And -- and as 

24 far as the ruling on the motion in limine, as we understood, 

25 we filed our motion in limine on the jury selection and jury 
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1 questions, and that's changed. So Your Honor certainly has 

2 the right to revisit a motion in limine if there was an 

3 lmproper ground. 

4 If it is timely, certainly you have the right to 

5 revisit that and potentially allow it ln, and you'll do that, 

6 you'll take a look and see whether it was timely produced. 

7 THE COURT: Well, I will. I'll have to look at it. 

8 MR. MICHALEK: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor. 

9 THE COURT: And I can do that tomorrow morning or 

10 tonight, whenever I have a chance. Are you guys ready for the 

11 jury? Are they here? Do we have Juror No. 1? 

12 THE MARSHAL: You don't, Judge. 

13 THE COURT: I do not? 

14 THE MARSHAL: I checked with Jury Services. She's 

15 not down there and they do not have email or a phone number to 

16 reach her. 

17 MR. MICHALEK: Ask to let her go and move on. 

18 THE COURT: Yeah, we have to. I'm going to run to 

19 the restroom. Give me 30 seconds before you bring the jury 

20 out. I'll use the restroom real quick. 

21 (Pause in proceedings.) 

22 THE COURT: [Inaudible] Juror No. 1, okay? So we're 

23 golng to bring them ln. The other lssues you brought up in 

24 the medical records and everything else, we'll have to discuss 

25 that at a break. 
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1 MR. BAIRD: Yes, Your Honor. 

2 MR. SIMON: And, Your Honor, and just real quick, the 

3 order I think that they're referring to is for us to 

4 supplement any records with the stuff that came in after that 

5 time frame. 

6 THE COURT: Medical records? 

7 MR. SIMON: Yeah, whatever the -- the supplemental 

8 report from an expert or a supplemental record or supplemental 

9 evidence that was basically discovered after that cut-off. 

10 THE COURT: Is that stipulation -- that was filed, 

11 right? 

12 MR. BAIRD: Right. You signed it, so you can just 

13 read the text. 

14 MR. SIMON: Yeah, but --but it's not -- so my 

15 position would be it doesn't mean that you can supplement 

16 something that you had for a year and never disclosed and then 

17 disclose it after. You supplement based on new information 

18 discovery, not something that they've had in their file for a 

19 year and never disclosed and kept it until the last minute. 

20 MR. MICHALEK: Your Honor, we didn't have it in our 

21 file for a year; but that being said, the jury is waiting for 

22 us. We can -- Your Honor can --

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: You can bring the jury in. 

MR. MICHALEK: -- Your Honor can read the order --

MR. BAIRD: But we didn't have it --we got it right 
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1 before and that's how we found out about it. 

2 THE COURT: I have to go back and look. I'm sorry. 

3 MR. MICHALEK: No. You'll --you'll see the order 

4 and the text is plain. 

5 THE COURT: I'm sure, at least in my mind, I had a 

6 reason for doing what I'm doing. I just don't recall 

7 specifically what it was. 

8 MR. BAIRD: Well, and part of it was it wasn't a full 

9 motion. It was just a throw-on to a reply. So it wasn't 

10 fully briefed, so it was kind of an impromptu thing. 

11 THE COURT: Okay. Because, again, my recollection 

12 was similar to Mr. Simon's, that it was subsequent to the --

13 the cut-off. So that's what I would have to go back and look 

14 at and that would be consistent with what I do in every case. 

15 Ma'am, you're Evangelina Ortega? 

16 MR. BAIRD: Miriam. 

17 THE COURT: Miriam. Okay. So you might want to 

18 introduce her. 

19 MR. BAIRD: Yeah, I will. Thank you, Your Honor. 

20 (The jury reconvened at 1:43 p.m.) 

21 THE COURT: All right. Welcome back, ladies and 

22 gentlemen. 

23 Mr. Simon, I'm golng to ask you to sit down. We need 

24 to replace some jurors and I'm going to quickly question them 

25 and I'll hand the panel back over to you. 
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1 Let's see, it looks like Seat No. 1, Kimberly Ellis, 

2 Badge No. 042, she failed to show up for Jury duty, so we're 

3 golng to have to substitute a new one. 

4 And can you call the substitute for the -- I'm sorry 

5 -- the new jurors, please? 

6 THE CLERK: Badge No. 892, Richard Spiher. Seat No. 

7 1, please. Badge No. 897, William Mitchell. 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Here. 

9 THE CLERK: Seat No. 12, please. Badge No. 899, Jose 

10 Cosenza. 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Here. 

12 THE CLERK: Seat 16. 

13 THE COURT: You can have a seat down here on the 

14 bottom, Slr. All right. 

15 Good afternoon. And I'm golng to have a few 

16 questions just of my three new jurors. Of my three new 

17 jurors, do any of you believe you may have heard anything 

18 about this case before coming into court? No? Everyone says 

19 no. Good. 

20 Have any of you ever been involved ln a lawsuit 

21 before? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I have. 

23 THE COURT: And you are Badge No. 897, Mr. William 

24 Mitchell. Sir, tell me what happened. 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I was rear-ended and sued 
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1 by someone who locked up their brakes after rear-ending me and 

2 rolled over on the top of their car. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. Did you ever have to go to an 

4 arbitration or a trial for that matter? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: No trial, but 

6 arbitration. 

7 THE COURT: And the fact you went through that 

8 litigation, does that affect your ability to listen to 

9 evidence presented by the Plaintiff and Defendant and render a 

10 verdict based upon what you hear, being fair to both sides? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I think it might, Your 

12 Honor. 

13 THE COURT: Okay. Would you tend to favor one side 

14 or the other? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Perhaps the Defense. 

16 THE COURT: Well, okay. Do you think that --what's 

17 golng to happen is the jury is the one who gets to decide the 

18 facts ln the case. There's going to be facts presented to you 

19 by the Plaintiffs' side and the Defense side. Do you think 

20 you can listen to it with an open mind, both sides? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

22 THE COURT: Okay. Because obviously every single 

23 case lS different and every case has facts that are unlque to 

24 them. So do you think you can keep an open mind to the facts 

25 presented by both the Plaintiff and the Defense? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

2 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Did anyone -- has 

3 anyone else been involved in a lawsuit? No one else besides 

4 Mr. Mitchell? All right. 

5 Have any of my three JUrors ever been jurors before? 

6 I have a hand in the back. Yes, sir. Mr. Spiher. 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: I was a JUror probably ln 

8 1983, '84, Aurora, Colorado. 

9 THE COURT: Civil or criminal? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Civil. 

11 THE COURT: Did your jury reach a verdict? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Yes, ma'am. 

13 THE COURT: Were you the foreperson? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: No, I was not. 

15 THE COURT: Thank you. Any other times you've been 

16 on Jury duty, sir? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: No. 

18 THE COURT: All right. Anyone else ever been a JUror 

19 before? No. Okay. 

20 And [inaudible] Mr. Spiher. Sir, are you employed? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: I'm retired. 

22 THE COURT: What did you retire from? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: I was an investigator for 

24 a company that did national security background investigations 

25 for United States Office of Personnel Management for five 
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1 years. 

2 THE COURT: Okay. What else? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Prior to that, I built 

4 golf clubs for Las Vegas Golf and Tennis for a couple of 

5 years. And then prior to that I was a real estate appraiser 

6 for 25 years in Colorado. 

7 THE COURT: That lS the maln careers you've had? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Yes. 

9 THE COURT: All right. And you-- you said you're 

10 retired? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Yes. 

12 THE COURT: Are you married? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: I am. 

14 THE COURT: Does your -- lS your spouse retired? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: She is retired, but she 

16 works part-time for Goodwill. 

17 THE COURT: Okay. And before retiring, what did she 

18 do for a living? Did she work? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: She's a financial 

20 analyst. 

21 THE COURT: Do you have children? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: I have two. One that lS 

23 living. 

24 THE COURT: Okay. And how long have you been ln 

25 Clark County, sir? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Since 1998. 

2 THE COURT: Thank you, Slr. Let's go down to Mr. 

3 William Mitchell. You're Badge No. 897. Mr. Mitchell, Slr, 

4 are you employed? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

6 THE COURT: What do you do for a living? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: A 3D additive 

8 manufacturer, rapid prototyping. 

9 THE COURT: Rapid prototyping. So tell me a little 

10 bit about your job. 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I work from home for 

12 myself on the side. I do rapid prototyping for anything 

13 plastic, objects from toys to graphic art designs, just any 

14 random object I'm offered. 

15 THE COURT: How long have you done that? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: For seven years now. 

17 THE COURT: Did you have a job before that one? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

19 THE COURT: What did you do? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Worked for Kinetico Water 

21 Corporation. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: And what did you do there? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I was a plumber there. 

THE COURT: And how long were you with Kinetico? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Six months, I'd say. 
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1 THE COURT: And before that? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Unemployed. 

3 THE COURT: All right. And so before your period of 

4 unemployment, what were you doing? Were you in school? Were 

5 you working? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: School and work. 

7 THE COURT: Where did you work before then? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Worked for Fleetwood 

9 Travel Trailers of Oregon. 

10 THE COURT: Sales? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: No. Manufacturing. 

12 THE COURT: All right. Any jobs that I've missed, 

13 sir? Are you married? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

15 THE COURT: Does your wife work? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

17 THE COURT: What does she do? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: She's a teacher for Clark 

19 County School District. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: What does she teach? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Kindergarten. 

THE COURT: All right. And do you have children? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Two. 

THE COURT: Minors or adults? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Minors. One mlnor, one 
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1 adult now. 

2 THE COURT: Okay. And how long have you been ln 

3 Clark County? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Ten years. 

5 THE COURT: Thank you very much, sir. And lastly, 

6 Mr. Cosenza. Good morning, Slr. You're Badge No. 899. Sir, 

7 are you employed? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

9 THE COURT: What do you do? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: I'm a bus driver. 

11 THE COURT: For the? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: For the open top 

13 sight-seeing big bus. 

14 THE COURT: Oh, the tour buses? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

16 THE COURT: How long have you done that? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Right now with them SlX 

18 years. 

19 THE COURT: And before that what job? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Working for [inaudible] 

21 transit, nlne years. 

22 THE COURT: Okay. Before that? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Before that I was a food 

24 supervisor in a company in California. 

25 THE COURT: All right. This pretty much all your 
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1 maln jobs? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

3 THE COURT: Are you married? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

5 THE COURT: Does your wife work? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: No. 

7 THE COURT: She a homemaker? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

9 THE COURT: And do you have children? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Two adults. 

11 THE COURT: And how long have you been in Clark 

12 County, Nevada? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Fourteen years. 

14 THE COURT: Thank you very much. And one more 

15 question. I know that Mr. Mitchell said he's been involved ln 

16 a motor vehicle accident. Either Mr. Spiher or Mr. Cosenza 

17 been involved in motor vehicle accidents? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: One. 

19 THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Spiher. I'm sorry, I was 

20 looking at the word-- letters incorrectly. What --tell me 

21 about your accident. When was it? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: [Inaudible] years. I've 

23 been involved in four. Two minor ones and two that totaled 

24 the car. 

25 THE COURT: All right. Did you -- did you ever have 
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1 to go into any litigation as a result of the accidents? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: No. 

3 THE COURT: Were you injured in any of the accidents? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: No, ma'am, I wasn't. 

5 THE COURT: Thank you very much. All right. Mr. 

6 Cosenza, have you been in a motor vehicle accident? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Minor. 

8 THE COURT: And were you ever involved ln any 

9 litigation because of that accident? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: [Inaudible.] 

11 THE COURT: All right. Did you ever have to act as a 

12 witness because of that -- well, I guess not litigation. All 

13 right. So hold on. Let me make sure I've asked you guys 

14 everything I need to. 

15 And I think I asked everyone yesterday, but let me 

16 ask the three of you agaln. Do you know either any of the 

17 attorneys involved in this case or the clients in this case, 

18 the Plaintiffs and the Defendant? Everyone says no. Okay. 

19 And do any of you know anyone on the court staff or 

20 the Court? All right. 

21 Mr. Simon, I'm golng to turn it back over to you, 

22 Slr. 

23 

24 

25 

MR. SIMON: Thank you, Your Honor. Mr. Mitchell? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes, sir. 

MR. SIMON: Thanks for being here. You told us you 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
30 

00358



1 kind of had a bad experlence at one point involving an 

2 accident? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

4 MR. SIMON: And so you initially suggested to the 

5 Court you might have a problem being a juror on this case to 

6 be fair and impartial because you might favor the Defense 

7 right out of the gate? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: That's correct. 

9 MR. SIMON: All right. How long ago was that 

10 accident? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Three years ago. 

12 MR. SIMON: And then how long ago until it was 

13 resolved? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: A year ago. 

15 MR. SIMON: And when you went through that process, 

16 did you have a deposition taken? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

18 MR. SIMON: And the lawyer was asking you questions? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

20 MR. SIMON: Probably didn't like him very much? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Well, probably not, no. 

22 MR. SIMON: All right. And so some of the questions 

23 I asked earlier, you know, whether anyone had any feelings, 

24 strong feelings towards lawyers or towards the system, is that 

25 what you were thinking about out there? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: With the system, yes. 

2 Specific lawyers and judges, no. 

3 MR. SIMON: Okay. So the fact that I'm here 

4 representing clients who were injured in an accident, would 

5 you automatically have, you know, problems being fair with 

6 that --

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: No animosity towards you, 

8 Slr, no. 

9 MR. SIMON: Not yet. 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: No. 

11 MR. SIMON: All right. In regard to the system, how 

12 do you feel about people who bring lawsuits? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I believe it should be 

14 resolved outside of the State. 

15 MR. SIMON: And so when someone comes into court and 

16 files a lawsuit, how does that make you feel? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: [Inaudible] I'm not 

18 involved, I have no feeling [inaudible] . 

19 MR. SIMON: So why do you think that you would just 

20 favor the Defense? Just based on your experience? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

22 MR. SIMON: And at the outcome? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Possibly. 

24 MR. SIMON: So if you were sitting -- if you were my 

25 clients and you were the person sitting on the jury, would you 
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1 want yourself judging this case based on your past experience? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I don't think I would 

3 take the system. 

4 MR. SIMON: What does that mean? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I don't think I would 

6 take the suit to court [inaudible] . 

7 MR. SIMON: So --

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Settle out of court. 

9 MR. SIMON: All right. So the fact that my clients 

10 are here in court, you would personally have a problem with 

11 that? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Possibly. 

13 MR. SIMON: Okay. And that is a belief that you've 

14 had [inaudible] other than court today obviously? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

16 MR. SIMON: And that's not something that's golng to 

17 change over the course of the week? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Probably not. 

19 MR. SIMON: All right. So at least in this 

20 particular case, you would have a very difficult time setting 

21 that aside and being fair to my clients in this particular 

22 case, fair to say? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I'm here to obey the law. 

24 MR. SIMON: But obeying the law and being fair to a 

25 party because you have certain personal beliefs that might not 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
33 

00361



1 make you fair? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: That could be. 

3 MR. SIMON: Nothing against you. I mean, it's just 

4 -- it's just who you are and your past experiences are your 

5 past experlences. And so what our goal is here today is to 

6 find people who can sit on a jury and be fair and impartial. 

7 And you heard some people say, Hey, I I could be fair, I 

8 don't have any preconceived notions about anything. But your 

9 situation is a little bit different? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yeah. 

11 MR. SIMON: Right? And so, in all fairness to both 

12 parties, you would agree you can't be fair in this case? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Probably not. 

14 MR. SIMON: Okay. We also talked a little bit 

15 yesterday, I don't know what you heard or didn't hear, but the 

16 standards that we have to prove the case. So the Plaintiff 

17 has a standard of [inaudible] standard of 51 percent, which lS 

18 just more likely than not. Is that something you could 

19 follow? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I'll follow the law. 

21 MR. SIMON: Okay. [Inaudible.] But since you were a 

22 person that was actually sued and my clients are asking for a 

23 sum of money, would you hold them to a higher standard before 

24 you would give them a large sum of money? 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Probably. 
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1 MR. SIMON: So you would -- because of your 

2 preconceived notion, you would have a difficult time being 

3 fair on that side, as well? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: I could. Like I said, I 

5 will obey the law. 

6 MR. SIMON: Okay. Is it Mr. Spiher? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: It lS. 

8 MR. SIMON: All right. You've had a few accidents? 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: I have. 

10 MR. SIMON: And you weren't injured? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: No. 

12 MR. SIMON: So the fact that you weren't injured ln 

13 those accidents and we're coming ln claiming that we were 

14 injured, would you still be able to be fair or would you have 

15 a preconceived notion that, you know, maybe this can't 

16 [inaudible]? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Just because I walked 

18 away unscathed doesn't mean that other people can't be hurt or 

19 injured. In -- in fact, in those accidents there were people 

20 that were injured. 

21 MR. SIMON: Okay. 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: I have no problem of a 

23 person, you know, having the capability of being injured in an 

24 accident, so. 

25 MR. SIMON: All right. Do you have any problems with 
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1 the standards that we have for these type of cases where we 

2 just have to show we're more right than wrong? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: To me, whoever, you know, 

4 proves their -- their side. 

5 MR. SIMON: And would you have the capability of 

6 returning a large sum of money if the evidence supported it? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: If the evidence supported 

8 it, yes. 

9 MR. SIMON: And you could still abide by that same 

10 low standard? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: I could. 

12 MR. SIMON: Has anyone close to you been seriously 

13 injured in an accident? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: No. 

15 MR. SIMON: I don't know if I asked this 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: You know, my nephew, but 

17 that wasn't an automobile accident, so. Workmen's comp 

18 accident. 

19 MR. SIMON: Was he seriously injured? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: He was. I mean, he broke 

21 his back. 

22 MR. SIMON: So you had firsthand the opportunity to 

23 see how a serious injury can affect somebody's life? 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Yes. 

MR. SIMON: Lifelong injuries? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Yes. 

2 MR. SIMON: Thank you. I don't know if I asked the 

3 rest of the panel, but has anybody had anybody close to them 

4 seriously injured in an accident? Yes, Slr. 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: It wasn't an accident. 

6 My son, when he was a child [inaudible] part of finger. He 

7 put in -- his finger in a plate when he was in a pool. 

8 MR. SIMON: Okay. 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: He was four years old. 

10 MR. SIMON: How old is he now? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: He's 23. 

12 MR. SIMON: Okay. And how has that affected his 

13 life? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Pretty much because 

15 missing one part of finger, you know, people sometimes look at 

16 him like, you know. 

17 MR. SIMON: Sure. 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: You're not [inaudible]. 

19 MR. SIMON: Okay. Thank you for that. And you've 

20 also heard my questions yesterday, probably ad nauseam. 

21 Everybody sick and tired of these questions, but something we 

22 got to do. Are you able to follow that standard? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes, but --yeah, but my 

24 thing is money don't recompense [phonetic] the injured for the 

25 rest of their life. You can have $1 million, but still things 
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1 ln the mind affect him and his life and his work. For me, 

2 too, because as a parent, you know, seeing him, you know, like 

3 that, it's really hard. 

4 MR. SIMON: Okay. Well, in cases like these we're 

5 allowed to come to court, that's what the law provides, to ask 

6 for compensation, and it's based on evidence. And is that 

7 something you could do is wait to hear the evidence? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

9 MR. SIMON: And also asked questions whether or not 

10 you can only consider the harms and the losses, which lS only 

11 the evidence. Could you do that? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

13 MR. SIMON: And not consider other factors? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: No. 

15 MR. SIMON: Okay. Nobody is going to be allowed to 

16 know whether or not anyone, my clients or other clients, were 

17 carrying insurance or other sources to pay. Is that something 

18 you can do is not consider that? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

20 MR. SIMON: All right. And you're not golng to glve 

21 any sympathy to my clients, right, just because they're 

22 injured? You would rely on the evidence? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Evidence first, you know. 

24 See what happens. 

25 MR. BAIRD: Your Honor, may I approach? 
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1 THE COURT: Yes, of course. 

2 (Bench conference.) 

3 MR. BAIRD: He's bringing up insurance agaln. 

4 [Inaudible.] I don't know how many times we have to 

5 [inaudible] jury [inaudible] considering [inaudible] . 

6 THE COURT: Can you just ask a more -- I get really 

7 nervous putting that thought in their head. Just tell them 

8 they can't consider anything else. 

9 MR. SIMON: Other factors. Sure. 

10 THE COURT: Thanks. 

11 (End of bench conference.) 

12 MR. SIMON: And, likewise, you're not golng to be 

13 extra sympathetic to the Defendant? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: No. 

15 MR. SIMON: You'll just rely on the evidence? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: [Inaudible.] 

17 MR. SIMON: Because you can't consider other factors? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: No. 

19 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Spiher, lS that something 

20 you can do? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 892: Yes. 

22 MR. SIMON: All right. Mr. Mitchell, lS that 

23 something you can do? 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

MR. SIMON: Thank you. Does anybody have any 
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1 experlence, on the -- on the whole panel, any experlence 

2 treating with a chiropractor? Okay. 

3 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Being treated by one? 

4 MR. SIMON: Yes. Okay. I'll just have them call it 

5 out. 

6 THE COURT RECORDER: Who was that answering? I 

7 didn't -- [inaudible]. 

8 MR. SIMON: Okay. I'll just have them call it out. 

9 THE COURT RECORDER: Yes, because I'm having a hard 

10 time keeping the record. 

11 MR. SIMON: Okay. I will make an extra effort. 

12 Sorry. 

13 Okay. Ms. James, what's your badge number? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: 861. 

15 MR. SIMON: Thank you. You raised your hand? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: Yes. 

17 MR. SIMON: And I think you told me earlier when you 

18 were ln Florida you had an incident? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: Yes, I had a car 

20 accident. 

21 MR. SIMON: All right. And you treated with a 

22 chiropractor for that? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: Yes. 

24 MR. SIMON: And -- and did you ever get referred out 

25 for MRI's or for pain management? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: No paln management, but I 

2 did get an MRI. 

3 MR. SIMON: Okay. And did you rely on your 

4 chiropractor's advice? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: I did. 

6 MR. SIMON: Okay. Did you have a good experlence or 

7 bad experience with your chiropractor? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: I had a good experlence. 

9 MR. SIMON: Now, because you have some medical 

10 training and knowledge, you're going to hear throughout the 

11 course of this case a lot of medical information. 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: Okay. 

13 MR. SIMON: Is that -- is your medical knowledge 

14 something you can, you know, set aside and listen to the 

15 doctors who take the stand? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: Yes. 

17 MR. SIMON: And weigh what they have to say and use 

18 your common sense? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: Yes. 

20 MR. SIMON: Yes. Okay. Mr. Ching, you said you --

21 I'm sorry. Your badge number? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 857: 857. 

23 MR. SIMON: Thank you. You said you treated with a 

24 chiropractor? 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 857: Yes. 
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1 MR. SIMON: And what -- did you have a good or bad 

2 experience? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 857: Bad. 

4 MR. SIMON: Bad. And why is that? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 857: I just didn't feel that 

6 he did [inaudible] referred to him by my lawyer, and I just 

7 don't feel he did the treatment that should have been dealt 

8 with in my situation, and he got paid for it. Kind of pissed 

9 me off. 

10 MR. SIMON: Okay. You were injured, correct? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 857: [Inaudible.] 

12 MR. SIMON: Was there anything wrong about the lawyer 

13 referring you there? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 857: Well, disappointing. 

15 MR. SIMON: Okay. Ms. Ramos? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 887: Yes. 

17 MR. SIMON: Okay. I thought I saw you wavlng your 

18 hand. 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 887: I did. 

20 MR. SIMON: All right. And what's your badge number? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 887: 887. 

22 MR. SIMON: Thank you. 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 887: And just an accident that 

24 I had mentioned. I was referred to a chiropractor. 

25 MR. SIMON: Okay. And who referred you? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 887: The lawyer. 

2 MR. SIMON: Okay. Was that a bad thing that the 

3 lawyer did that? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 887: Not at all. 

5 MR. SIMON: Okay. And why not? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 887: I actually had a good 

7 experlence. I was in pain and he fixed me, so --

8 MR. SIMON: All right. 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 887: -- it was good. 

10 MR. SIMON: So the lawyer wasn't trying to do 

11 anything sneaky with you? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 887: Not that I know. 

13 MR. SIMON: Okay. Ms. Norman? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Yes. 

15 MR. SIMON: Your badge number, please? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: 888. 

17 MR. SIMON: Thank you. 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Chiropractic, compressed 

19 vertebrae in my back [inaudible] . 

20 MR. SIMON: Did you have a good experlence with the 

21 chiropractor? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Chiropractor was great. 

23 I do more than I was told I would be able to do. 

24 

25 

MR. SIMON: Did you end up seelng other physicians? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Yes. 
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1 MR. SIMON: Pain management doctor, splne surgeon, 

2 that type of thing? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Surgeons and ortho 

4 specialists. 

5 MR. SIMON: Did you have a good experlence with them? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Uh-huh. 

7 MR. SIMON: And did you rely on your doctor's advice? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Yeah. 

9 MR. SIMON: And did you believe what they had to tell 

10 you? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: To a degree. 

12 MR. SIMON: Okay. 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: I was told not to have 

14 children. I had two children afterwards. I was told my spine 

15 wouldn't be able to take it. 

16 MR. SIMON: Thank you. Anyone else? All right. Mr. 

17 Mitchell? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

19 MR. SIMON: Ladies first, so I'll ask Ms. Banzon. 

20 All right. 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 867: 867. 

22 MR. SIMON: All right. Thank you. What was your 

23 experience? 

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 867: With a chiropractor. It 

25 was good, and they do -- did refer me for pain management and 
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1 MRI. So I did not follow what the doctor said to have 

2 injections, pain injections, because I didn't want it. 

3 MR. SIMON: Okay. But your experience with the 

4 chiropractor was favorable? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 867: It was good. 

6 MR. SIMON: Mr. Mitchell? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

8 MR. SIMON: And you treated with a chiropractor? 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: What's that? 

10 MR. SIMON: You treated with a chiropractor? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

12 MR. SIMON: And what's your badge number? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: 897. 

14 MR. SIMON: Okay. And how was your experience? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Negative. 

16 MR. SIMON: All right. And so this -- you may learn 

17 throughout the course of this case deals with chiropractic 

18 treatment. Your negative experience with chiropractic 

19 treatment, would that also maybe be a reason you might not be 

20 able to be fair and listen to all the evidence? I'm sorry? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: No. 

22 MR. SIMON: No. Okay. Why not? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Every doctor lS an 

24 individual. There's good and bad doctors. 

25 MR. SIMON: All right. And was the chiropractic 
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1 [inaudible] that you treated with here in town? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: No. 

3 MR. SIMON: Did I miss anyone else? Sorry. Mr. 

4 Reeder? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: Badge No. 881. 

6 MR. SIMON: Thank you. And how was your experience? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: It was good. It was 

8 thirty plus years ago. 

9 MR. SIMON: That doesn't count. 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: I was ln high school. 

11 MR. SIMON: All right. Thank you for that. Mr. 

12 Mitchell? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

14 MR. SIMON: Do you think it is okay for someone to 

15 needlessly endanger somebody on the roadway? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: No. 

17 MR. SIMON: Okay. And why not? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: That's an unusual 

19 question. Because of life, liberty and property are worth 

20 preservlng. 

21 MR. SIMON: And so would you agree that if someone 

22 does do that, they should be responsible for the harm they 

23 cause? 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

MR. SIMON: Would you agree that if they're not 
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1 responsible, that could have an effect on the community? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

3 MR. SIMON: And would you agree that it's important 

4 to hold people responsible --

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 897: Yes. 

6 MR. SIMON: -- for their actions? Does anyone else 

7 on the panel disagree with that concept? Mr. King, do you 

8 agree with that? 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 637: There's only two things 

10 I've disagreed with. Everything else I agree with you. 

11 MR. SIMON: Okay. Thank you for that. 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 637: Like I said, descriptive. 

13 MR. SIMON: What's that? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 637: Like I said, descriptive 

15 disagreement. 

16 MR. SIMON: All right. And remind me agaln what that 

17 was? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 637: Why lS that? I'm never 

19 movlng on. 

20 MR. SIMON: Okay. 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 637: You know your answers. 

22 MR. SIMON: All right. Other than Ms. James, has 

23 anybody else been told that they have an lnJury to their disc? 

24 Okay. I think you told me about that already [inaudible]. 

25 Other than Ms. Norman and Ms. James, anyone else? No. 
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1 I think where we left off yesterday was we were 

2 talking a little bit about bumper stickers. And, Mr. Johnson, 

3 you were laughing a little bit at me. 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 176: Yes. 

5 MR. SIMON: What was your bumper sticker? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 176: I have never had one. 

7 MR. SIMON: You've never had one. 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 176: Never once. 

9 MR. SIMON: Okay. Because I thought I saw you ralse 

10 your hand. No? All right. My mistake. 

11 Ms. James, if you're selected as a JUror, you have 

12 certain rights when you listen to the evidence and go to 

13 deliberate. And some of those rights are if other people 

14 aren't following the law or doing what the Judge told them to 

15 do, your right is to speak up and make sure they all do that. 

16 Is that is that something you could do if you're picked and 

17 have to go back and deliberate? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 861: Yes. I don't have a 

19 problem with that. 

20 MR. SIMON: Okay. Ms. Dvorak, do you think that's 

21 something you could so? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 865: No. 

23 MR. SIMON: No. Why not? 

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 865: Because I just like to 

25 keep to myself. 
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1 MR. SIMON: Okay. Mr. Izquierdo? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Yes. 

3 MR. SIMON: If somebody-- if you're selected as a 

4 JUror, everybody has their own experiences. And Mr. Mitchell 

5 has his experience that he's brought in and shared with us 

6 today, a lot of you have shared that. But part of bringing 

7 your experlence is for you to apply your common sense ln 

8 reaching a fair and just verdict. Can you apply your common 

9 sense from your everyday experiences over the course of your 

10 life? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: I think I can. 

12 MR. SIMON: Okay. 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Because everybody lS 

14 different. 

15 MR. SIMON: Okay. And that's important because we 

16 don't want you to leave your common sense at the door when 

17 you're coming in here. So that's something you can do for me 

18 if you're selected? Yeah. 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Yeah, [inaudible]. 

20 MR. SIMON: Okay. Can everyone else do that? Does 

21 everyone agree with that general proposition? 

22 Your Honor, should we approach? 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: You may. 

(Bench conference.) 

MR. SIMON: I guess this would be the time I 
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1 challenge for cause? 

2 THE COURT: Sure. 

3 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible] anybody is stricken. 

4 THE COURT: Yeah. Is there anyone that stands out? 

5 MR. BAIRD: Well, I guess if he wants to --

6 THE COURT: Because there might be some you guys 

7 agree about, so. 

8 MR. SIMON: Right. So I would say Mr. Mitchell right 

9 out of the gate. He's the new juror, Mr. Mitchell. Because 

10 of his prior experiences he's already told us he can't be 

11 fair. He got sued. He's bitter. He's already, you know, 

12 siding with the Defense. 

13 MR. BAIRD: He also said he's golng to follow the law 

14 and be fair [inaudible] . 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. SIMON: Well, but he said he would have a tough 

time setting all of that aside, so. Mr. Mascella from 

yesterday. He's agreed --

THE COURT: 

MR. SIMON: 

MR. BAIRD: 

THE COURT: 

MR. BAIRD: 

THE COURT: 

MR. SIMON: 

Mascella. 

He's Juror No. 3. 

I don't stipulate to that. 

You won't? 

No. 

Okay. 

And Juror No. 7, Mr. 
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1 THE COURT: The gentleman back there on the top. 

2 MR. BAIRD: Yeah. No, I know. You know, I'll 

3 stipulate to him. 

4 THE COURT: You will? Okay. So that's -- I'll glve 

5 him a chance to voir dire Mitchell and Mascella. 

6 MR. SIMON: Okay. 

7 THE COURT: Mascella. 

8 MR. SIMON: All right. I have a few more. 

9 THE COURT: Okay. 

10 MR. SIMON: Ms. Banzon. 

11 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

12 MR. BAIRD: I don't stipulate. 

13 THE COURT: Okay. 

14 MR. SIMON: And Ms. Norman. 

15 MR. BAIRD: No. 

16 THE COURT: Okay. 

17 MR. SIMON: And then Mr. King. He undoubtedly said 

18 he can't follow the --you know, the preponderance of the 

19 evidence rule, follow the law on that issue. And I've 

20 questioned him ad nauseam and he's not budging at all on that, 

21 so. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. BAIRD: I agree. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. SIMON: You agree with that one or no? 

MR. BAIRD: King? Yeah. 
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1 MR. SIMON: Oh. Okay. So you're stipulating to that 

2 one? 

3 THE COURT: He stipulated to two. 

4 MR. SIMON: Okay. And then-- and then I think there 

5 was Mr. Reeder had a tough time with that, the standard, as 

6 well. I don't know if he's changed his mind--

7 THE COURT: Okay. 

8 MR. SIMON: -- today but, you stipulate to him or no? 

9 MR. BAIRD: No. 

10 MR. SIMON: No. Okay. 

11 THE COURT: Anything else? 

12 MR. SIMON: I think that --

13 THE COURT: So we stipulated to Ching and King. So 

14 same thing, I'll query them real quick and hand them over to 

15 Danny, and then you can go. 

16 MR. SIMON: Okay. 

17 THE COURT: Okay? Thanks. 

18 (End of bench conference.) 

19 THE COURT: All right. By way of stipulation, agreed 

20 to challenges for cause on Ching and King. 

21 All right. At this time I'm going to thank and 

22 excuse Mr. Dale King, Badge No. 637. And I'm going to thank 

23 and excuse Badge No. 857, Anthony Ching. Sirs, please go 

24 downstairs to Jury Services. 

25 THE CLERK: Badge No. 904, Ryan Rayo ln Seat 5. 
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1 Badge No. 906, Carpricia Lanza, Seat 7. 

2 THE COURT: What's Mr. Rayo's badge number? 

3 THE CLERK: 904. 

4 THE COURT: 904. All right. Good afternoon. And 

5 these questions are directed to just Ms. Lanza and Mr Rayo. 

6 Do -- well, let me start with: Do either of you know 

7 the attorneys involved in this case? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: No. 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: No. 

10 THE COURT: Okay. Do either of you know the 

11 Plaintiffs and the Defendant, the clients in this case; 

12 Christian Cervantes-Lopez or Ms. Ortega, the Defendant? Okay. 

13 Does anyone know the Court, court staff? Okay. Have 

14 either one of you ever been involved ln litigation before? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: As we speak. 

16 THE COURT: As you speak. Okay. And you are badge 

17 number-- Mr. Rayos said no. And Badge No. 906, Ms. Lanza--

18 sorry. 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: 906. 

20 THE COURT: 906. All right. So you said you're 

21 engaged in litigation as we speak. Tell me a little bit more 

22 about that. 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Two weeks ago as I was 

24 traveling down Bermuda, I was right turn red and I was slammed 

25 into and my car was totaled. And as of now, they -- the cops 
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1 will not show up to the scene of the accident, so there's no 

2 police report. So when I called the insurance, they refused 

3 to [inaudible] . 

4 THE COURT: Okay. Were you injured? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: My back and shoulders 

6 have been like pain -- I have been in pain, but not to the 

7 point where I have the time to go out and try to [inaudible] 

8 take care [inaudible] . 

9 THE COURT: Okay. So the fact that you're involved 

10 ln that accident, do you think you can listen to the -- the 

11 facts presented by the Plaintiffs and the facts presented by 

12 the Defendant, and render a verdict that is fair to both? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Yes. 

14 THE COURT: Thank you very much. Any other times, 

15 ma'am, you have been involved in a lawsuit, either as a 

16 Plaintiff or a Defendant? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: No. 

18 THE COURT: All right. And Mr. Rayo, did you say no, 

19 you've never been involved in a lawsuit? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: No. 

21 THE COURT: Okay. So I know Ms. Lanza was involved 

22 ln a prior motor vehicle accident. Mr. Rayo, have you ever 

23 been involved in a motor vehicle accident? 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: Yeah, like a mlnor one. 

THE COURT: All right. Tell me what happened. 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: [Inaudible] I was just --

2 it was a stoplight and the -- the light turned green and then 

3 there was a car that was -- he was [inaudible] . He was 

4 probably like three, four cars ln front of me. So I -- I went 

5 to the left lane to pass him, and then someone apparently 

6 like they went over here to the right, but there is no right 

7 lane. It's like a solid line. And we went -- I went to merge 

8 back into the right lane, and then he -- she merged back into 

9 her left lane and she hit my back. 

10 THE COURT: Okay. Did-- were you involved ln any 

11 type of lawsuit or litigation because of that? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: No. 

13 THE COURT: Were you injured? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: No. 

15 THE COURT: All right. The fact that you were 

16 involved in that accident yourself, does that -- do you think 

17 you can still listen to the facts presented by the Plaintiff, 

18 listen to the facts presented by the Defendant, be fair to 

19 both? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: Yes. 

21 THE COURT: Thank you. And have either of you been 

22 JUrors before? 

23 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: No. 

THE COURT: No. And Mr. Rayo, are you employed? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: No. I'm a full-time 
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1 student. 

2 THE COURT: Where? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: [Inaudible.] 

4 THE COURT: So what are you going to be when you get 

5 out of school? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: After this, physical 

7 therapist assistant, then I'm going to do a bridge program and 

8 be a PT. 

9 THE COURT: So how far along are you in your studies? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: I just -- I just started 

11 the beginning of January. 

12 THE COURT: When are your classes? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: 8:30 to 12:30 every day, 

14 Monday through Thursday. 

15 THE COURT: Are you missing classes? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: Yeah. 

17 THE COURT: Counsel, I'm just going to let him go. 

18 He's ln classes. 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: I actually have a letter 

20 if you want. 

21 THE COURT: Do you have a letter showing your 

22 classes? Can you give it --well, I don't know where Jason 

23 lS. 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: I did have it yesterday. 

THE COURT: Well, I'd like to see the letter, please. 
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1 I'm golng to open these up, okay? All right. So I do have a 

2 letter from Pima Medical Institute. Looks like it's signed by 

3 your physical therapist assistant program director, who is Dr. 

4 Rebecca Chema [phonetic], and she does indicate on letterhead 

5 that you are involved in school and you have classes from 8:30 

6 to 12:30 every day. All right. 

7 Sir, thank you so much for your time. We're golng to 

8 glve these back to you. Go down to Jury Services and check 

9 out. 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 904: Thank you. 

11 THE COURT: Okay. I think the gentleman up there 

12 knows he's about to move. 

13 THE CLERK: Badge No. 916, Vorshon Cole, ln Seat 5, 

14 please. 

15 THE COURT: All right. Good afternoon, Mr. Cole. A 

16 few questions for you. Do you know the attorneys involved ln 

17 this case? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

19 THE COURT: Do you know the clients ln this case, 

20 which are the Plaintiff, Christian Cervantes-Lopez, and the 

21 Defendant, Ms. Ortega? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

23 THE COURT: Okay. And you don't know anyone ln the 

24 court, either, correct? 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Correct. 
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1 THE COURT: Okay. And do you believe you may have 

2 heard or read anything about this case before coming into 

3 court? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

5 THE COURT: And, sir, have you ever been a JUror 

6 before? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

8 THE COURT: And are you employed, sir? 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

10 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Cole, what do you do for 

11 a living? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: System-- systems analyst 

13 [inaudible] . 

14 THE COURT: And how long have you done that? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Eight years. 

16 THE COURT: Eight years. All right. And before 

17 that, did you have any other jobs? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. I was employed as a 

19 -- as a consultant, so I had a bunch of different law offices, 

20 actually, that I -- that I administered computer work for, 

21 server work, computer server work. 

22 THE COURT: Okay. Well, I believe at the --the 

23 beginning of this case, Mr. Simon and Mr. Baird, they 

24 indicated the names of all the lawyers involved in their firm. 

25 Do you know any of those lawyers? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

2 THE COURT: Okay. Did you do work for their firm, to 

3 the best of your knowledge? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. And before -- so before working 

6 with the lawyers on their computer systems, what else did you 

7 do? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: And before that I 

9 [Inaudible] Pharmaceuticals, that's in Lake Forest, Illinois; 

10 Chicago. 

11 THE COURT: What did you do with the pharmaceutical 

12 company? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Computer work, 

14 [inaudible] support. 

15 THE COURT: Have you always been ln computers? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: When I was at --right 

17 when I was around 20, 21, I was a building maintenance guy, 

18 so, downtown-highrise Chicago. 

19 THE COURT: 

20 PROSPECTIVE 

21 THE COURT: 

22 PROSPECTIVE 

23 THE COURT: 

24 PROSPECTIVE 

25 THE COURT: 

Okay. Are you married? 

JUROR NO. 916: No. 

Do you have children? 

JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

How many? 

JUROR NO. 916: Three. 

Minors or adults? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: One adult, two mlnors. 

2 THE COURT: And how long have you been in Clark 

3 County, Nevada? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Nine years. 

5 THE COURT: Nine years. And I didn't ask you. Sir, 

6 have you ever been involved in a lawsuit? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

8 THE COURT: Have you ever been involved ln a motor 

9 vehicle accident? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

11 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Ms. Lanza, you're 

12 Badge No. 906. Ma'am, are you employed? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Yes. 

14 THE COURT: What do you do? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: I work at [Inaudible]. 

16 THE COURT: Sorry? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: I work at [Inaudible]. 

18 THE COURT: Okay. How long have you been there? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: A month. 

20 THE COURT: And what do you do there? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: I work [inaudible]. 

22 THE COURT: Okay. And before that job, did you have 

23 a different job? 

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Yeah. I worked for the 

25 YMCA [inaudible] Las Vegas and Tropical [Inaudible]. 
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1 THE COURT: And are you married? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: No. 

3 THE COURT: Children? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: No. 

5 THE COURT: And how long in Clark County, Nevada, 

6 ma'am? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: [Inaudible.] 

8 THE COURT: [Inaudible] plus years. Thank you very 

9 much. 

10 Mr. Simon, do you have any questions of our new 

11 jurors? 

12 MR. SIMON: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you. Ms. Lanza, 

13 I'm born and raised, too. I went to a school, Valley High 

14 School. Probably-- not sure what's golng on there these 

15 days. Where did you go to high school? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Durango. 

17 MR. SIMON: And the car accident that you were ln, 

18 you mentioned you were having a difficult time with the 

19 process? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Yes. 

21 MR. SIMON: Okay. Is there anything about that 

22 experience that you would hold anything against my client for? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: [Inaudible] every--

24 every case is different [inaudible] . 

25 MR. SIMON: All right. You were listening to my 
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1 questions --

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Yes. 

3 MR. SIMON: -- earlier and yesterday? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: [Inaudible.] 

5 MR. SIMON: Multiple times. Multiple, multiple. Is 

6 there anything about that that you disagree with? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: [Inaudible.] 

8 MR. SIMON: You're able to follow that low standard? 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Yeah. 

10 MR. SIMON: You're able to consider [inaudible] the 

11 harms and the losses? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: [Inaudible.] I-- I 

13 believe that, you know, I do believe that you can't really put 

14 a-- I do believe you can't put like a money-- a monetary 

15 value on the injuries, even though I feel injured [inaudible] . 

16 I was told specifically by my lawyer actually when I just now 

17 this past week have been calling around to lawyers asking them 

18 to help me, I've been seriously told they won't help me 

19 because I'm not injured or because I refuse to say that I 

20 [inaudible], you know, [inaudible]. So if anything, I'm just 

21 more of a [inaudible] not specific [inaudible] . 

22 MR. SIMON: All right. Well, in this particular 

23 case, my clients have a lawyer and we're representing injury 

24 claims, and we're golng to be asking you if you're selected at 

25 the end to award, you know, a sum of money based on the 
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1 evidence. Is that something you can do? Or, would your 

2 experlence that you're going through now 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Well, [inaudible] 

4 experience would be different [inaudible] . 

5 MR. SIMON: Okay. So you, if selected, you can 

6 promlse me now that you can set that aside for me and only 

7 look at the evidence here? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: [Inaudible.] 

9 MR. SIMON: Would you also be able to set aside any 

10 sympathy that you might have for the Defendant in this case? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Yes. 

12 MR. SIMON: And if I prove to you based on the 

13 medical evidence that my clients were seriously injured, would 

14 you hesitate to return a verdict for me if I prove that? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: Show me the proof and 

16 [inaudible] . 

17 MR. SIMON: Mr. Cole? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

19 MR. SIMON: What's the highest level of education 

20 that you had? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Three years of college. 

22 MR SIMON All · ht And where dl'd you go?. . : rlg . 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: I went to -- I went to 

24 DeVry for a year, and then I went to Coyne American Institute 

25 in Chicago. I'm sorry. And then I went to college at Lake 
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1 County, did two years of that, two years there. 

2 MR. SIMON: And where's Lake County? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Lake County lS ln 

4 Illinois. 

5 MR. SIMON: All right. Are you from Chicago? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

7 MR. SIMON: And how long have you been in Vegas? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Nine years. 

9 MR. SIMON: You're happy to be here now than ln 

10 Chicago? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: I am. I was 30 years ln 

12 Chicago and I hated it. Well, I didn't hate it, but the 

13 weather got to me, and I just came back and I think that's 

14 where I got my cold from. It was so cold there. 

15 MR. SIMON: You have any problem with people bringing 

16 lawsuits? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: I do not. 

18 MR. SIMON: Someone who's injured you believe has a 

19 right to come into court? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Absolutely. 

21 MR. SIMON: All right. Is there anything about my 

22 questions earlier about the standards, the lower standards 

23 that you would have trouble following? 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

MR. SIMON: And if I prove to you and the evidence 
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1 supports it and I ask you for a large sum of money, would you 

2 hesitate to return a verdict of a large sum of money if I 

3 't? prove l . 

4 

5 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: I would not. 

MR. SIMON: And you can also set aside any sympathy 

6 you might have for the Defendant? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Absolutely. 

8 MR. SIMON: And you can only -- and you can only 

9 consider the harms and the losses, not how things are golng to 

10 get paid or how prices go up or anything like that? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: I would never take that 

12 into consideration. I don't know what number to put on any 

13 one person's pain and suffering. I don't know what that 

14 number lS, so. 

15 MR. SIMON: But that's the type of compensation that 

16 you would be open to awarding if the evidence showed that? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

18 MR. SIMON: And the law allowed it? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

20 MR. SIMON: Okay. And you would be able to follow 

21 the Judge's instructions? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Absolutely. 

23 MR. SIMON: And also use your everyday common sense 

24 ln making decisions? 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 
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1 MR. SIMON: And if you get selected as a JUror, you 

2 can go back in that Jury room and talk about this case with 

3 the other people openly? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

5 MR. SIMON: And if somebody else wasn't following the 

6 law, would you be able to stand up and make sure the others do 

7 follow the law? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

9 MR. SIMON: Okay. Have you ever had, Mr. Cole, have 

10 you ever had any spinal injuries? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

12 MR. SIMON: Okay. And are they-- were they caused 

13 from any accidents or injuries? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No, no. They-- I play a 

15 lot of sports and I think my -- my sports activity may have 

16 caused degeneration ln my back. 

17 MR. SIMON: Okay. 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: And so I was ln a Chicago 

19 hotel one year and I was bent over at a 90-degree just washing 

20 my face, and all I did was this, and it went away. The --

21 like my back went out and so kind of digressed from there. 

22 

23 for that? 

24 

25 

MR. SIMON: Did you end up treating with physicians 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

MR. SIMON: Getting MRI's? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

2 MR. SIMON: Seeing orthopedic spine surgeons? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

4 MR. SIMON: Getting injections? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

6 MR. SIMON: Okay. And how was your experlence with 

7 all of that? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Great. My-- my problem 

9 now lS my knee. 

10 MR. SIMON: Okay. So you are able to function now 

11 with regard to your back? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

13 MR. SIMON: Did they tell you whether or not you had 

14 a herniated disc or a disc protrusion? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Compressed. 

16 MR. SIMON: Compressed disc. Anybody ever tell you 

17 you needed surgery? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

19 MR. SIMON: Is there anything about that experlence 

20 when considering spinal injuries in this case that you might 

21 have a hard time being fair? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: No. 

23 MR. SIMON: You think you're able to listen to the 

24 physicians in this case and decide what the specific injuries 

25 are in this case? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

2 MR. SIMON: Do you have an understanding that certain 

3 disc injuries or spine injuries can be different? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Yes. 

5 MR. SIMON: Different to certain people? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Absolutely. 

7 MR. SIMON: And you can keep an open mind to weigh 

8 the evidence? 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 916: Absolutely. 

10 MR. SIMON: Thank you for your time, sir. 

11 THE COURT: Whenever you gentlemen are ready. 

12 MR. BAIRD: I'm not limited, right, Your Honor? 

13 THE COURT: Yes, that's correct. And, no, you're not 

14 limited. 

15 MR. BAIRD: Okay. Let's start out by talking about 

16 bumper stickers that you almost put on your cars, but didn't 

17 quite put on your cars. I'm just kidding. We're not going to 

18 talk about bumper stickers. 

19 Ladies and gentlemen, let's start out with, first 

20 off, we're here because there's a dispute between the 

21 Plaintiffs and from [inaudible]. And you know what? Let me 

22 introduce you to my client. She was able to make it. She's 

23 back from the frigid north. Miriam Pizarro-Ortega. So this 

24 lS my client and she's the Defendant in this case. 

25 I mentioned it earlier, but sometimes I talk fast and 
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1 [inaudible] heard that part. But there's been some discussion 

2 about people who act negligently or carelessly. Do any of you 

3 have the belief or understanding that we are here to punish 

4 Ms. Pizarro? Does anybody feel like the purpose of this 

5 lawsuit is to punish her for something that she did? 

6 THE COURT: Counsel, and I'm sorry, you're going to 

7 have to explain to the jury. I have been calling her by the 

8 wrong name. 

9 MR. BAIRD: They're both her name, but she puts 

10 Pizarro ln front of Ortega, so I was -- kind of took a 

11 shortcut. 

12 THE COURT: Oh. Okay. I just wanted them to realize 

13 we were referring to the same individual. 

14 MR. BAIRD: Okay. That's probably wlse, yeah. Her 

15 name lS Pizarro-Ortega. Some times we might accidentally 

16 refer to her as Ms. Ortega, but it's the lady over there in 

17 the courtroom. 

18 Who here thinks that prejudice lS bad? Yeah, that's 

19 about what I expected. We've all heard at least we're 

20 aware of over the last 50 or so years prejudice has been an 

21 lssue that's been dealt with a lot in our society. And 

22 certainly it usually means something like raclsm, something 

23 akin to that, an unfair prejudice; something that doesn't have 

24 a basis in reality. 

25 Now, that's not --that is bad and it's something 
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1 that our society frowns upon. Now, when we ask you about your 

2 personal feelings and your beliefs -- and -- and I want to 

3 thank you for being honest because I know some times you might 

4 feel like you're being picked on when we start to ask you all 

5 these detailed questions about a feeling or position you might 

6 hold. 

7 When we talk about prejudice with you guys today, 

8 we're not accusing you of something we all frown on in that 

9 societal way. What we're really trying to do here is find out 

10 lS anybody unwilling to give both sides a fair shake. 

11 Is there anybody in the jury today, in the box here 

12 ln front of me, that is simply unwilling to give both sides 

13 the opportunity to present their evidence before you make a 

14 decision? Yes. Oh. Sorry. What's your badge number? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: 899. 

16 MR. BAIRD: All right. Tell me about that. Why --

17 why do you think-- who-- who can you not give a fair shake? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: As a driver, as a bus 

19 driver, could be many reasons why the accident happened 

20 [inaudible] both or both of them. In that case we have to see 

21 the facts. Could be so many things that maybe your Defendant 

22 was thinking she got up [inaudible] in her mind at the time of 

23 the accident or the other person was, you know, speeding too 

24 much at the time of the accident. So in that case, for me, 

25 that's a hard decision because it's -- it's -- for me, it's 
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1 hard to tell which one why they have been the blame of the 

2 accident, you know. 

3 MR. BAIRD: Okay. Now, what if we make this easy for 

4 you? Mr. Cosenza, right? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

6 MR. BAIRD: Okay. Mr. Cosenza, we are here, and Ms. 

7 Pizarro has already admitted fault, okay? So she's already 

8 said, I made a mistake when I made that left turn. So we're 

9 only here to determine whether if the Plaintiffs were injured 

10 and, if so, to what extent, put a value on that. 

11 So with finding out who is at fault, with that not 

12 being an lssue you have to worry about, can you now -- are you 

13 comfortable saying you'll give both sides a fair shake as they 

14 present their evidence? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

16 MR. BAIRD: Okay. So as you sit here today, you 

17 haven't decided, oh, the Plaintiffs are right; or, oh, the 

18 Defendant is right? You-- you don't think already that 

19 someone is entitled to money, right? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yeah. 

21 MR. BAIRD: Now, I talked a little bit about 

22 prejudice and -- and our individual beliefs. And clearly, 

23 everybody has beliefs. We don't expect to find a bunch of 

24 people today who don't have any feelings, any strong feelings 

25 about anything ever, okay? We're not looking for, you know, 
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1 sacks of flour that don't think or feel. 

2 We understand that you're human beings, the jurors. 

3 And we're looking for human beings. We're only concerned 

4 about the sort of prejudices or strong feelings you simply 

5 can't lgnore. If, for example -- and this is a pretty common 

6 analogy people use. If you-- and, frankly, I'm one of those 

7 people. 

8 If you really hate cherry ple, just can't stand 

9 cherry ple, perhaps you shouldn't judge a pie contest or a 

10 baking contest. Now, if cherry pie is not your favorite, but 

11 you don't hate it, and you can put aside your feelings and 

12 judge each pie on its own merits, then you can still be a 

13 judge of that. 

14 Now, in this case maybe your beliefs would, if we 

15 were outside of this courtroom, make you want to lean a 

16 certain way to one side or the other; but what I want to know 

17 is if any of you lean so far that you couldn't straighten up 

18 and be fair to both parties in this case. 

19 Is there anybody that has that feeling? Do any of 

20 you hate the Plaintiffs? You don't know them, right? You 

21 haven't received any evidence. And do any of you hate my 

22 client, Ms. Pizarro? Do any of you hate bald guys with a 

23 beard? All right. I'm making progress. 

24 Based on the questions Mr. Simon asked you yesterday, 

25 did any of you feel already that the Plaintiffs are entitled 
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1 to money? You did. Tell me about that. 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: Well, because of my 

3 lnJury. Every day I wake up and I feel you're entitled to the 

4 pain and suffering that -- that they have to go through. I 

5 mean, when you talked even about injections, reminded me I had 

6 injections [inaudible] something. 

7 MR. BAIRD: Okay. So as we sit here today before 

8 we've presented evidence, you feel already the Plaintiffs have 

9 been injured and would be entitled to something? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: [Inaudible.] 

11 MR. BAIRD: Okay. And you couldn't set that aside 

12 and wait and find out based on evidence that's presented 

13 whether or not [inaudible]? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: I already feel that if 

15 they've taken it this far. 

16 MR. BAIRD: Okay. So the fact that they've gone as 

17 far as bringing this lawsuit to court--

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: Yeah. 

19 MR. BAIRD: -- you feel like, well, they must have 

20 something? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: Yeah. 

22 MR. BAIRD: Have you ever heard the phrase: Takes 

23 two to tango? 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: Yes. 

MR. BAIRD: Could it possibly be a little bit of both 
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1 sides lS the reason we're here today? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: Yeah, but you clarified 

3 that --that she was already-- she admitted she was guilty. 

4 MR. BAIRD: All right. She was at fault for causing 

5 the accident? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: Yes. 

7 MR. BAIRD: Yeah, we're not golng to send her to 

8 jail. 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: Sorry. 

10 MR. BAIRD: That's all right. Do you believe that 

11 every time there's a car accident someone's going to get 

12 [inaudible]? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: No, some times they 

14 don't, but if -- if they cause an lnJury, you know, there's a 

15 lot of pain and suffering that happens later on. 

16 MR. BAIRD: Okay. And in your mind already, the 

17 Plaintiffs have suffered some sort of injury. The question 

18 for you lS just what 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: Yeah. 

20 MR. BAIRD: -- and how much? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: Yeah, because if not, 

22 they wouldn't go through all of this because you're busy. 

23 MR. BAIRD: If someone makes a mistake, but no one lS 

24 harmed, should the person who makes the mistake have to 

25 compensate someone else? And would you feel that any time you 
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1 make a mistake you have to pay something for it? 

2 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No. 

3 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No. 

4 MR. BAIRD: Pardon? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: No harm, no foul. 

6 MR. BAIRD: Okay. 

7 THE COURT RECORDER: Who was that? 

8 MR. BAIRD: That was 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: 888. 

10 MR. BAIRD: Sorry about that. Do any of you believe 

11 that no matter what evidence is presented to you over the next 

12 few days of this trial, that you are obligated to award 

13 something to the Plaintiffs as you sit here today before 

14 you've heard the evidence? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Yes, because of the fact 

16 you're saying there's 49, 50 percent, somebody lS going to 

17 walk out of here with money somehow one way or the other. 

18 MR. BAIRD: Okay. I will tell you that my client lS 

19 not here to get money. And so, let's talk a little bit about 

20 this burden, the 51 percent that Mr. Simon was talking about. 

21 He kept --Mr. Simon -- and Mr. Simon and I get along fine. I 

22 hope that the fact that we get along fine doesn't make you 

23 think that we don't care about this --this case and that we 

24 --that we and our clients don't have strong feelings about 

25 how this ends. 
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1 But he kept saylng that easy 51 percent standard, 

2 that easy standard of over 50 percent. Do any of you have the 

3 feeling that it is easy for a -- for a Plaintiff to prove 

4 their case? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: He made it sound that it 

6 was easier for you than it was for him. 

7 MR. BAIRD: Okay. 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 142: I don't know why. 

9 MR. BAIRD: Okay. And let me ask you this: How many 

10 -- oh. Yes. 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: No, I was just 

12 [inaudible] . 

13 MR. BAIRD: Okay. You almost had to [inaudible]. 

14 When we talk about this burden, and maybe it's a little bit 

15 awkward when we talk about percentages, how many decisions 

16 that you make do you reduce down to a percentage of 

17 persuasion? Do any-- any of you do that on a regular basis? 

18 So when we talk about this 51 percent, is it safe to 

19 say that it's kind of a foreign concept to all of you; is that 

20 a fair statement? 

21 

22 

23 Didn't 

24 Mascella? 

25 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes. 

MR. BAIRD: Now, you had been on a Jury, correct? 

didn't you sit in a civil trial once before, Mr. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 163: Yes. Steven Mascella, 
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1 163. 

2 MR. BAIRD: Okay. So you did have some experlence 

3 with that 51 percent, more than 50 percent standard, correct? 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 163: Yes. 

5 MR. BAIRD: Okay. But that's not something you use 

6 ln your daily life? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 163: No. 

8 MR. BAIRD: Okay. When you-- if you-- have any of 

9 you made -- had to make a big purchase and then have you had 

10 to kind of gather the pros and cons for this purchase before 

11 making your decision? Have you had to do that ever? Maybe 

12 buying a car or buying an appliance? Mr. Johnson, was it? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 176: Uh-huh. 

14 MR. BAIRD: Okay. You were nodding your head. 

15 What's your badge number? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 176: I'm 176. 

17 MR. BAIRD: 176. How did that go? You took the pros 

18 and cons? Did you have a make-believe scale ln your head? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 176: You just see if the pros 

20 outweighs the cons. 

21 MR. BAIRD: Okay. All right. Mr. Simon talked a 

22 little bit yesterday about that, lady justice and her scales, 

23 she's got her blindfold on. That's what we're going to do. 

24 We've got a scale. Both parties are going to throw their 

25 evidence up. You guys will decide whether it goes on the 
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1 Defense side or the Plaintiffs' side. In the end, whichever 

2 way it tips, that's golng to be the winner. 

3 Now, it's easier to think of it that way or think of 

4 it as more than [inaudible] percent. It's all the same thing 

5 and that's the standard, that's the burden that Plaintiff has 

6 to carry. 

7 Having explained it that way, are you comfortable 

8 uslng that standard to determine who prevails in this trial, 

9 whether or not the Plaintiffs are awarded anything? Anybody 

10 have an issue with that? Okay. Let's -- let's talk about 

11 that. 

12 What's your badge number? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 865: 865. 

14 MR. BAIRD: And you're Ms. Dvorak? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 865: Yeah. 

16 MR. BAIRD: Are you related to the composer? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 865: [Inaudible.] 

18 MR. BAIRD: Okay. 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 865: I don't know. I just 

20 have a problem with deciding either way because I don't want 

21 it to impact either one of them, so it like bothers me that I 

22 have to impact one or the other. 

23 MR. BAIRD: Right. 

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 865: It makes me feel 

25 uncomfortable. 
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1 MR. BAIRD: It's probably golng to make us all 

2 uncomfortable. The Plaintiffs might be a little bit 

3 uncomfortable. My client might be a little bit uncomfortable. 

4 It's not a lot of fun that we have to resolve these disputes, 

5 but we don't have any other method at this point to resolve 

6 this issue for the parties. 

7 Do you feel there's no way that you could apply the 

8 rules and the instructions that the Court gives you to this 

9 case? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 865: I don't think I could. 

11 MR. BAIRD: When we're talking about these scales, 

12 all I'm asking, you might have a predisposition that you wish 

13 a certain party will come out ahead. As we're putting the 

14 evidence onto these scales, really all we're saying is: don't 

15 put your finger on the scale, okay? 

16 Can you guys do that? Keep your finger off the scale 

17 and let the evidence tip it? Anybody have a problem with 

18 that? 

19 Ms. Norman, lS that name right? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Yes. 

21 MR. BAIRD: Are you comfortable with that standard? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Yeah. 

23 MR. BAIRD: I mean, we all have have our feelings. 

24 We all have our beliefs about how things should be, but if you 

25 can all just let the Court do what it asks you to do. 
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1 Here's another question. Have you ever been driving 

2 on a stretch of road how about Mr. Reeder? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: Reeder. 

4 MR. BAIRD: Reeder. 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: 881. Sorry. 

6 MR. BAIRD: Thank you. You're driving on a stretch 

7 of a road and you think, This speed limit seems a little too 

8 low. Ever had that feeling? 

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: Uh-huh. Yes. 

10 MR. BAIRD: Even though you might think the speed 

11 limit should be a little bit higher, you still obey the speed 

12 limit? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: Yes. 

14 MR. BAIRD: All right. That's really what we're 

15 asking you to do. You might wish it was a little bit 

16 different. We're just asking you to just follow the speed 

17 limit. The Judge is going to give it to you. The Judge will 

18 give you instructions when we're done after we've given you 

19 all the evidence. 

20 There has been questions glven to you guys about 

21 evidence that we're not going to be able to consider. And 

22 some of you have expressed concerns that you wish you could 

23 have more evidence than we -- than we can glve you. 

24 Have any of you heard of the discovery process? 

25 Prior to a trial the parties engage in discovery where we 
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1 both sides -- have the opportunity to get all the evidence 

2 they can, all the evidence that they want to use in 

3 preparation for this 

4 MR. SIMON: Your Honor, may we approach? 

5 THE COURT: Yes. 

6 (Bench conference.) 

7 MR. SIMON: I think he's arguing the facts ln the 

8 case and trying to argue to the jury this point. 

9 THE COURT: What are you trying to ask? 

10 MR. BAIRD: I'm trying to let them know that we've 

11 had time to give them all the evidence [inaudible]. We don't 

12 need any evidence that's not [inaudible] to be presented. I'm 

13 asking them to follow your instructions and consider only the 

14 evidence that we present to them. 

15 THE COURT: Okay. Say it like that. 

16 MR. BAIRD: Yeah. 

17 THE COURT: Okay. Say it like that. 

18 MR. BAIRD: That was what my next sentence was golng 

19 to be. 

20 THE COURT: Okay. 

21 (End of bench conference.) 

22 MR. BAIRD: And what that means, ladies and 

23 gentlemen, is that you need to consider only that evidence 

24 that you're presenting that we used the discovery process to 

25 gather. That will be all of the little chips that you're 
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1 golng to put on the scale. We'll glve them to you. Don't 

2 bring your own, okay? 

3 Does anybody have any lssues with that? Any 

4 questions or concerns? Yes? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: I just want to bring up 

6 that based on what --that whole 51/49 thing, is that -- it's 

7 kind of presented like you're saying that's not -- like how it 

8 says that's not enough evidence. He kind of made it seem like 

9 you're saying like, well, we're going to give you this little 

10 amount of evidence and that that would be enough. When really 

11 you're not talking about 51 over 49 percent of a hundred 

12 percent of evidence. 

13 You're talking about 59 over 49 meanlng you proved 

14 your side to be more, which is that's why we're here. Once 

15 you've proved that your side, you have more proof than the 

16 other, that's exactly what you're doing. It's not, oh, you 

17 have 51 percent of the evidence. Like 15 lS good, okay, it's 

18 yours. No. It's you have 51 over 49. Like you have more 

19 evidence, not that you have -- it's not like you only have 51 

20 percent out of 100. [Inaudible] 51 over 49. 

21 MR. BAIRD: Yes. Yeah. 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 906: And that's what I think 

23 -- I think that we spent a lot of time yesterday talking about 

24 that and I think that kind of just like confused everyone 

25 because that's not what is 
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1 THE COURT: Counsel? I'm sorry to cut you off, 

2 ma'am. I think a couple of our jurors have an urgent need to 

3 use the facilities. 

4 MR. BAIRD: Sure. 

5 THE COURT: So, ladies and gentlemen, let's take a 

6 10-minute break. Come back at three o'clock. 

7 You're admonished not to converse or --hold on. I 

8 have to give you this. Don't converse amongst yourselves. Do 

9 not form or express an opinion on this case and do not do any 

10 research on this case. See you back in ten. 

11 (The prospective Jury panel recessed at 2:51p.m.) 

12 THE COURT: All right. Let's go off the record. 

13 MR. MICHALEK: Your Honor, can I make a record? 

14 THE COURT: Yes. 

15 MR. MICHALEK: Real brief. And I will make it real 

16 brief. 

17 THE COURT: That's okay. 

18 MR. MICHALEK: But the "I" word came up, you know, 

19 the insurance and -- there's already been --

20 THE COURT: Talking about Mr. Simon's volr dire? 

21 MR. MICHALEK: Simon raised the insurance issue that 

22 the parties aren't --that the jury is not allowed to know 

23 whether the Defendant has the insurance. Obviously we object 

24 to that. I'm not -- I'm not sure what the Court wants to do 

25 about that, whether it's going to be an instruction, you know. 
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1 I don't -- I don't want to call too much attention to 

2 it, but it is a problem that he leaves the impression that you 

3 don't get to know whether [inaudible] has insurance, 

4 wink-wink, nod-nod, that she does, don't worry about awarding 

5 money. I mean, that's usually where these --these inferences 

6 tend to go. 

7 He got warned yesterday about not uslng the word 

8 "insurance," and he used it today, and I'm concerned whether 

9 the jury is now thinking, oh, wait a minute, there's lnsurance 

10 coverage, we don't have to worry about whatever monetary award 

11 we might 

12 THE COURT: So what are you asking for? 

13 MR. MICHALEK: Well, I mean, to make the record I got 

14 to ask for a mistrial or some sort of instruction regarding 

15 the improper use of the insurance. I don't know what the 

16 Court's going to do with it, but, I mean, for the record I got 

17 to-- I'm just making my record on it. 

18 MR. SIMON: Your Honor, can I just clear the record 

19 here? 

20 THE COURT: Yes. 

21 MR. SIMON: First of all, there was no wink-wink, 

22 nod-nod after I stated that, so for you to suggest I was doing 

23 that to the jury is improper. Number two, the exact question 

24 I asked was: Either party, they don't get to know if either 

25 party. And that is a jury instruction that I'm allowed to 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
84 

00412



1 glve to the jury at the end of this case. I didn't do 

2 anything improper, and that lS an actual jury instruction 

3 that's given. So I just followed the law in asking that same 

4 exact question. Thank you, Judge. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. So that 

6 MR. MICHALEK: Just rebuttal. My-- the Plaintiffs' 

7 insurance coverage is not an lssue. My party's insurance 

8 coverage lS an lssue. That's where the jury gets the 

9 impression, Oh, it's okay to award money because there lS 

10 lnsurance. And I'll leave it at that. 

11 THE COURT: Okay. The objection you're making, it 

12 came up, it was an objection was contemporaneously made by 

13 the Defendant. It was brought up at a bench conference. At 

14 the bench conference, Mr. Simon was instructed to kind of move 

15 away from the topic of insurance, which he did. 

16 He ended -- I think he modified the question to: You 

17 can't consider anything outside ln coming to a decision. And 

18 I believe that Defense counsel has also been trying to kind of 

19 hit home that point through your recent questions as far as 

20 they can't consider anything outside what's presented in court 

21 in order to come to their decision for the Plaintiff or the 

22 Defendant. So at this point, I don't think there's a ground 

23 for mistrial. I don't think the jury has been tainted. 

24 The -- the issue of insurance has been kind of 

25 brought up sua sponte by some of the jurors over the course of 
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1 the day, so in some ways it's necessary to focus them on the 

2 fact that they can only consider what happens in this 

3 courtroom. Thank you. 

4 Anything else? 

5 MR. MICHALEK: No, Your Honor. 

6 THE COURT: Okay. See you in a second. 

7 (The Court recessed at 2:55p.m. until 3:11p.m.) 

8 (In the presence of the prospective jury panel.) 

9 THE COURT: All right. Looks like our jury is back. 

10 Counsel, if you would like to continue. 

11 MR. BAIRD: Thank you, Your Honor. 

12 Okay. We left off, we were speaking with Ms. Lanza, 

13 and I think we -- we were just talking about whether you call 

14 it 51 percent or just more evidence than going the other way, 

15 that's the same. Was there anybody that had any questions or 

16 concerns with that understanding of the Plaintiffs' burden of 

17 proof? 

18 Have any of you worked in medical billing? Yes. 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: [Inaudible] hospital. 

20 MR. BAIRD: Okay. So you have been involved ln --

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: [Inaudible.] 

22 MR. BAIRD: Okay. You audit? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: Yes. 

24 MR. BAIRD: Okay. Is anything you've seen or 

25 experienced in your work at Healthsouth, is that going to 
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1 affect your ability to consider just the evidence that's 

2 presented in this --

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: As far as [inaudible]? 

4 MR. BAIRD: If -- if medical billing and the way 

5 things are charged, if that becomes an issue, you can -- you 

6 can set your personal experiences aside? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 881: [Inaudible . ] 

8 MR. BAIRD: Mr. Simon has mentioned or implied that 

9 surgery might be an issue in this case. The burden to prove 

10 the need for surgery is not just satisfied by someone saying 

11 "I need surgery." It's a province of doctors, of surgeons. 

12 Do any of you have a problem waiting until surgeons 

13 have offered their oplnlons in this case before deciding 

14 whether a surgery lS really needed in this case? 

15 What's your badge number? Sorry. 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yeah. Some times the 

17 doctor can say something, but the patient feels something 

18 different. And I have a brother-in-law that happen to him 

19 that, you know, he have surgery on his spine and right now 

20 after the surgery he wasn't doing [inaudible], but doctor 

21 pushing him to do it. And after that he get worse. 

22 MR. BAIRD: Okay. 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: That's --that's my 

24 experience, stuff like that, you know, so I'm against that 

25 because some times doctors pushing-- I'm not against them, 
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1 but they -- they do tell you to do some things that really you 

2 don't feel it and you went to do it and it's worse. 

3 MR. BAIRD: Okay. So doctors aren't perfect. Does 

4 anybody disagree with that? They're people. They're humans. 

5 Now, your experience with -- was it your 

6 brother-in-law? 

7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Right. 

8 MR. BAIRD: Is that going to make it hard for you to 

9 take the evidence that is given by the doctors? Are you golng 

10 to be able to set your brother-in-law's experiences --

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yeah, little bit, you 

12 know-- yes, yeah. It's going to be a little affected because 

13 I saw him before the surgery was better. [Inaudible] has 

14 paln, but after the surgery even worse. 

15 MR. BAIRD: Okay. If the testimony lS that -- first 

16 off, in your mind every time a doctor recommends surgery, 

17 should the patient not do it? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: In some cases, not. 

19 MR. BAIRD: It depends on the evidence, right? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

21 MR. BAIRD: Every case is going to be a little bit 

22 different too; is that a fair statement? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yes. 

24 MR. BAIRD: So you're golng to get some evidence in 

25 this case about whether or not surgery lS the right thing. 
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1 Can you wait until you get that evidence before you decide 

2 whether it's the right thing to do or not? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 899: Yeah. 

4 MR. BAIRD: Now, the Plaintiffs may claim they were 

5 just following their doctors' orders. Is doing what a doctor 

6 recommends proof by itself that the treatment was necessary in 

7 your minds? 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: No. 

9 MR. BAIRD: Okay. And why is that? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 888: Because I was told I'd 

11 never use my arm agaln, and I'm a firearms instructor. I was 

12 told I could never walk again and I walk and I chase people 

13 down and everything else. Doctors are not always right. Mind 

14 over matter in a lot of areas. Don't let someone brainwash 

15 you so easily. 

16 MR. BAIRD: Okay. Is it safe to say that --well, 

17 let me ask-- let me ask this question: You're going to 

18 listen to all the evidence, right? What the Plaintiffs say, 

19 what other people say, [inaudible], demonstrate their 

20 injuries, you're golng to take all that evidence in; is that a 

21 fair statement? Are you guys comfortable doing that? 

22 Mr. Escalante, what's your badge number, please? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 874: 304. 

24 MR. BAIRD: Mr. Escalante, are you comfortable -- do 

25 you feel like you can understand complex medical terms as 
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1 they're spoken in English? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 874: Sometimes. 

3 MR. BAIRD: Sometimes. 

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 874: Sometimes. 

5 MR. BAIRD: Now, there's going to be a lot of 

6 discussion in this case, we're going to be using medical terms 

7 for procedures and and anatomical parts. Do you have any 

8 concern that there lS going to be testimony given by doctors 

9 that you're not going to understand? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 874: Probably not hundred 

11 percent. 

12 MR. BAIRD: And if you don't understand 100 percent 

13 of the evidence, do you think that might affect your ability 

14 to -- to render a fair verdict in this case? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 874: Could be, because I can't 

16 understand, but I be sure that I will try to do the best of 

17 me, use of common sense, [inaudible] evidence, [inaudible] and 

18 I do. 

19 MR. BAIRD: Mr. Izquierdo? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Yes. 

21 MR. BAIRD: I'm sorry. I had a thought as you told 

22 -- as you told everybody what -- what it was your job was, and 

23 I just 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Waiter. 

MR. BAIRD: You're a waiter. Okay. And for how 
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1 long? 

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Forty years. 

3 MR. BAIRD: Forty years. You ever serve somebody 

4 food that you didn't think they were going to like, but 

5 because they asked for it, you gave it to them? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Yes. 

7 MR. BAIRD: Okay. 

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: And even though after I 

9 told them they shouldn't have that, they still [inaudible]. 

10 Well, I told you you shouldn't have this. 

11 MR. BAIRD: So even though 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Going back about the 

13 doctors. 

14 MR. BAIRD: Yes. 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Giving you procedures 

16 they know you don't need. 

17 MR. BAIRD: Okay. 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: I had an incident with my 

19 dentist. I had-- I don't have a couple wisdom tooth in the 

20 back, so he wanted to pull the molar on top. 

21 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible.] 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: And I said, Why? He 

23 said, Because you don't have anything at the bottom. And I 

24 said, What's the difference? He said, Well, you have no use 

25 for it. So then I said -- well, I said, Do you also use your 
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1 pinky? He goes, No. I said, You golng to cut it off? He 

2 says, No. I said, Well, have a nice day then. I left. 

3 MR. BAIRD: Wow. I think you called it the right 

4 way. Mr. Izquierdo, obviously that was not a great experience 

5 for you. 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: Not [inaudible]. 

7 MR. BAIRD: Now, luckily there's no dentists that 

8 anybody's going to call to testify in this case. So are you 

9 comfortable in understanding-- that's not golng to change the 

10 way you evaluate the case that we're going to present; is that 

11 a fair statement? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: I can come back to I 

13 don't know a lot of medical terms, but I think by asking 

14 questions you can comprehend and decide what -- what is right 

15 or wrong, I think. 

16 MR. BAIRD: And both sides are golng to work hard to 

17 make sure that it's presented in a way that you can understand 

18 it. I know yesterday you were indicating you -- you tend to 

19 second guess yourself. And there will be plenty of times for 

20 that afterwards, but when it comes --when you're deciding the 

21 verdict, can you just consider each piece of evidence on its 

22 own merit and just -- and do what the Judge orders you to do? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 880: I try to do the best of 

24 my ability. 

25 MR. BAIRD: Okay. Very good. Thank you. Mr. 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
92 

00420



1 Mascella, I know that -- that you and Mr. Simon spoke a fair 

2 amount yesterday. Are you comfortable with following the 

3 Judge's orders and instructions in this case in spite of your 

4 own personal beliefs? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 163: Yes. 

6 MR. BAIRD: Okay. You understand that it's okay to 

7 have personal beliefs as long as we don't let them make us 

8 treat the parties unfairly as we're evaluating the evidence; 

9 is that your understanding? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 163: Yes. 

11 MR. BAIRD: Mr. Johnson, you -- you mentioned a fine 

12 with respect to, you know, finding out who's at fault. And 

13 you understand that that what the purpose of this is not to 

14 punish anybody, correct? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 176: Yes. 

16 MR. BAIRD: Is it your understanding it will be 

17 part of your job will be to determine whether or not the 

18 Plaintiffs were injured, and if so, to what extent? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 176: Yes. 

20 MR. BAIRD: I think that's all I have, Your Honor. 

21 Thank you. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: All right. Counsel want to approach? 

(Bench conference. 

THE COURT: Any challenges for cause? [Inaudible.] 

MR. MICHALEK: What was established ln Mr. Baird's 
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1 cross was that all of the jurors, despite their personal 

2 [inaudible] with following the instructions [inaudible] need 

3 to strike for cause [inaudible]. I don't think there is 

4 [inaudible] strike anybody for cause. We both have five 

5 peremptories, which we [inaudible], you know, so I don't think 

6 there lS. If they do, then you have to strike [inaudible], 

7 would be [Inaudible], Taunti Dvorak. I-- I think this would 

8 be better served by us just using our peremptories [inaudible] 

9 as opposed to us striking for cause. 

10 THE COURT: Okay. 

11 MR. BAIRD: So Escalante lS the one that we're 

12 [inaudible] at this time just because he doesn't understand 

13 English. 

14 MR. MICHALEK: He --medical terms as far as he's 

15 unsure. And you want to be, you know, we want to be sure that 

16 every juror understands 100 percent of the [inaudible] . You 

17 know, we will do our best, but he's still non-committal. 

18 THE COURT: Okay. 

19 MR. SIMON: First of all, every single juror is not 

20 golng to understand the medical terms and he's -- as you said 

21 yesterday, he's been here for a long time working ln our 

22 industry and our hotels. He's responded to every single one 

23 of his questions. He understands. It's up to the lawyers to 

24 explain what these medical terms mean. So if it's --their 

25 only basis is to say he's not going to understand complex 
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1 medical terms, nobody does. Lawyers don't. Doctors don't. 

2 So that's --he did not say anything that would justify cause 

3 ln our mind. 

4 MR. BAIRD: When you compare his demeanor and the way 

5 he responds to [inaudible], I mean, there's a-- there's a 

6 demonstrable difference. And Mr. Simon said -- he said 

7 specifically [inaudible] English [inaudible] . I think he 

8 demonstrates [inaudible] understanding so [inaudible] . 

9 MR. SIMON: He responded to every single one of your 

10 questions without hesitation. He understands the English 

11 language. 

12 MR. MICHALEK: He he does, but he said "somewhat". 

13 He goes, no, I'm not going to be able to say I understand 

14 them. It's his doubt that we're ralslng, so [inaudible] is he 

15 saylng I'm not sure I can understand. 

16 THE COURT: Okay. I don't think that there's -- I'm 

17 not golng to-- as far as the Plaintiffs, I'm not going to 

18 allow any of those for cause other than the ones we've already 

19 done. We can make a record at break. Enough keep us going 

20 [inaudible], as well. 

21 MR. BAIRD: Okay. 

22 THE COURT: So at this point, you're golng to pass 

23 for cause? 

24 

25 

MR. BAIRD: Yes. 

MR. MICHALEK: Yes. 
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1 THE COURT: And we'll make a record. 

2 MR. BAIRD: Great. 

3 (End of bench conference.) 

4 THE COURT: Thank you. All right. Ladies and 

5 gentlemen -- and for the record, both sides have passed for 

6 cause at this point subject to the objection that was made at 

7 the bench. 

8 At this time, ladies and gentlemen of the jury, we're 

9 golng to go ahead and select a Jury. What you're going to see 

10 over probably the next several minutes is you'll see the 

11 attorneys passing a sheet of paper back and forth. And what 

12 they're going to do lS they're going to put names on that 

13 sheet of paper. Those are individuals who will be excused as 

14 JUrors in this case. 

15 If your name lS on the sheet of paper and you are 

16 excused as jurors, please don't take any offense to it. It 

17 does not mean you're a bad person. It doesn't mean you're 

18 even a bad juror. It just means that you're perhaps not 

19 suited to be a juror in this particular case. 

20 So feel free to make yourself comfortable. Please 

21 stay in your seats. If you want to talk to your neighbor, if 

22 you want to -- I don't know-- stand up and stretch, please, 

23 that's --that's fine. The process should be over -- I don't 

24 know -- in a few minutes. Thank you very much for your 

25 patience. 
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1 And, Ms. Lanza, did you ralse your hand or are you 

2 just stretching? Okay. 

3 (Pause ln proceedings.) 

4 THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, if your 

5 name lS called, please stand up, move to the back of the room; 

6 however, don't leave at this time. 

7 THE CLERK: Badge No. 892, Richard Spiher. Badge No. 

8 142, Maya Richardson. Badge No. 163, Steve Mascella. Badge 

9 No. 865, Taunti Dvorak. Badge No. 867, Joy Banzon. Badge No. 

10 897, William Mitchell. Badge No. 874, Oscar Escalante. Badge 

11 No. 881, Russell Reeder. Badge No. 899, Jose Cosenza. Badge 

12 No. 887, Virginia Ramos. Badge No. 888, Mary Norman. 

13 THE COURT: All right. Counsel for the Plaintiff, 

14 Counsel for the Defendant, is this the jury you selected? 

15 MR. SIMON: Yes, Your Honor. 

16 MR. BAIRD: Yes, Your Honor. 

17 THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen of the 

18 Jury, thank you so much for your time. Please go back 

19 downstairs to Jury Services before you leave the courthouse. 

20 Have a wonderful day. 

21 (Pause ln proceedings.) 

22 THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen of the 

23 Jury, as you've probably figured out by this point you've been 

24 selected as the jurors in this case. I'm golng to ask you to 

25 please stand, raise your right hand to be sworn ln. 
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1 (The Clerk administered the oath.) 

2 THE COURT: Please sit down. Make yourself 

3 comfortable. All right. Ladies and gentlemen of the Jury, 

4 this is what's going to happen. We're going to give you a 

5 schedule. Jason will give you a schedule at the end of the 

6 day. 

7 Not every single day is golng to be a full day. Some 

8 days are going to be half days and we'll give you-- try to 

9 glve you as much -- many specifics as possible so you guys can 

10 make arrangements with childcare, your employer, whatever else 

11 you need. If you do need a letter for your employer, let us 

12 know so we can get you that letter. 

13 What's going to happen right now lS I'm golng to read 

14 you some instructions. These instructions are intended to 

15 guide you during the course of the trial. When we're finished 

16 -- I don't know if we'll have time today or if the Plaintiffs 

17 have decided whether or not they're going to do openings 

18 today. 

19 What's golng to happen next is the attorneys will 

20 have a chance to do opening. The Plaintiff will present their 

21 opening and the Defense counsel will have an opportunity if 

22 they decide to do an opening at this time. 

23 Counsel, had you anticipated doing openlngs today? 

24 

25 

MR. SIMON: Only if we can get both openings in. 

THE COURT: How long do you think you're going to be 
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1 for each of them? 

2 MR. SIMON: I may be forty minutes. 

3 THE COURT: Yeah. How long will you be? 

4 MR. BAIRD: I can -- twenty or thirty, I think. I 

5 don't know. 

6 THE COURT: Okay. It will take me a few minutes to 

7 read these instructions. We're at 20 till 4:00 right now. 

8 Let's see where we are after the instructions are read, all 

9 right? Thank you. 

10 Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, you're admonished 

11 that no juror may declare to any fellow juror any fact 

12 relating to this case of his own knowledge and if any JUror 

13 discovers during the trial or after the jury has retired that 

14 he or any other juror has personal knowledge of any fact or 

15 controversy in the case, he shall disclose the situation to me 

16 in the absence of the other JUrors. 

17 This means that if you learn during the course of the 

18 trial that you're acquainted with the facts of the case or the 

19 witnesses and you've not previously told us of that 

20 relationship, you must declare that fact to me. 

21 The way you communicate with the Court throughout the 

22 trial is through Jason, the marshal. Jason or another marshal 

23 in his place will be present at all times when we're in 

24 sesslon. During the course of the trial the attorneys for 

25 both sides, court personnel, other than the marshal, are not 
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1 permitted to talk to you. 

2 It's not that they are being antisocial. It is 

3 simply that they are all bound by ethics and the law not to 

4 speak to you because doing so may contaminate your verdict. 

5 We are not even allowed to say hello if we should pass you in 

6 the hall or see you ln the elevator. 

7 If you should recognize a witness or be familiar with 

8 the facts of the case when the witness is testifying, please 

9 make a note to yourself that you recognize the witness and how 

10 you recognize that witness. At the next break in the trial, 

11 please give that note to the marshal and he will get that note 

12 to the Court. 

13 Sometimes, and it's not uncommon, people don't 

14 recognize or remember names of individuals who may be called 

15 in this case, but once they see them on the witness stand, 

16 they recognize their face. If that happens in this case, 

17 please, again, just write down-- write it down, give it to 

18 the marshal, and let the Court know. 

19 You're also going to be admonished that you're not to 

20 visit the scene of any of the acts or occurrences mentioned 

21 during the trial unless specifically directed to do so by the 

22 Court. The reason that we do not want you going out to any 

23 particular scene or location referenced during the trial is 

24 not because we don't want you to know everything there is 

25 about the location, but simply that there's no guarantee the 
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1 intersection, the street, the apartment complex, the 

2 restaurant, whatever, looks the same today as it did at the 

3 time of the accident. 

4 Usually photos are taken at the time of an incident 

5 or shortly thereafter. And we will use those photographs 

6 during the trial rather than going to the site to look at it 

7 firsthand. The parties may sometimes present objections to 

8 some of the testimony or other evidence. 

9 At times I may sustain those objections or direct you 

10 to disregard certain testimony or exhibits. You must not 

11 consider any evidence to which an objection has been sustained 

12 or which I have instructed you to disregard. It is the duty 

13 of a lawyer to object to evidence which he believes may not be 

14 properly offered and you should not be prejudiced in any way 

15 against a lawyer who makes objections on behalf of the party 

16 which he represents. 

17 I may also find it necessary to admonish the lawyers. 

18 If I do, you should not show prejudice to the lawyer or his 

19 clients because I found it necessary to admonish him. 

20 Throughout the trial, if you cannot hear a question 

21 asked by the attorney or the answer given by a witness, please 

22 ralse your hand as an indication. If I don't see your hand 

23 up, please say "excuse me, I didn't hear that," and we'll ask 

24 that question be repeated or the answer repeated. 

25 If you wish, you may take notes to help you remember 
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1 what any witness has said. If you do take notes, please keep 

2 those notes to yourself until you and your fellow JUrors go to 

3 the jury room to decide this case. 

4 Do not let note taking distract you so that while 

5 you're writing down the answers to one question, you don't 

6 hear the answers to the other questions. You should rely upon 

7 your own memory of what was said and not be overly influenced 

8 by the notes of other jurors when you go back to deliberate. 

9 The case lS going to proceed ln the following order. 

10 First, the Plaintiff has an opportunity to make an openlng 

11 statement outlining the case and suggesting to you what it 

12 believes the evidence will be. The Defendant may then make 

13 their opening statement or they can reserve their right to 

14 make an opening statement until after the Plaintiff has put on 

15 his case. 

16 Opening statements are a synopsls, an overvlew of 

17 what the attorney believes the evidence will be. Opening 

18 statements of the attorneys are not evidence. After all, the 

19 attorneys are not the witnesses to any of the facts in 

20 controversy in the case. 

21 The Plaintiff will then introduce evidence and call 

22 witnesses. At the conclusion of Plaintiff's case, the Defense 

23 may then call any additional witnesses and submit additional 

24 evidence if it wishes to do so. After the Defense rests, the 

25 Plaintiff has a right to call rebuttal witnesses. 
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1 After all the evidence is ln, I'll instruct you on 

2 the law that applies to this case. You must not be concerned 

3 with the wisdom of any rule of law stated ln these pretrial 

4 instructions or ln the instructions given to you at the end of 

5 the trial. 

6 Regardless of any oplnlon you may have as to what the 

7 law ought to be, it would be a violation of your oath to base 

8 a verdict upon any other view of the law then that given to 

9 you by the Court. After the instructions on the law are read 

10 to you, each party has the opportunity to argue orally in 

11 support of their case. This is called closing argument or 

12 summation. 

13 What the attorneys say in closing argument is not 

14 evidence. Their arguments are designed to summarize and 

15 interpret the evidence for you and show you how the evidence 

16 and the law relate to one another. Since the Plaintiff has 

17 the burden of proof, the Plaintiff gets to argue to you twice 

18 at the end of the trial. 

19 Plaintiff will argue, the Defense will argue, and 

20 then the Plaintiff has the opportunity to rebut the 

21 Defendant's argument. After the attorneys have presented 

22 their arguments, you will retire to select a foreperson to 

23 deliberate and arrive at your verdict. 

24 Faithful performance by you of your duties is vital 

25 to the administration of justice. It is your duty to 
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1 determine the facts and determine them from the evidence and 

2 the reasonable inferences arising from such evidence, and in 

3 doing so, you must not indulge in guesswork or speculation. 

4 The evidence which you're to consider consists of the 

5 testimony of witnesses and exhibits admitted into evidence. 

6 The term "witness" means anyone who testifies in person or by 

7 way of a deposition and it may include the parties to the 

8 lawsuit. 

9 A deposition lS simply an examination of the witness 

10 taken at a prior date under oath with the attorneys present 

11 where the testimony is taken down in written format and those 

12 written questions and answers will be read to you during the 

13 trial. 

14 Admission of evidence in court is governed by rules 

15 of law. From time to time it may be the duty of the attorneys 

16 to make objections and my duty as the Judge to rule on those 

17 objections and decide whether a certain question may be 

18 answered and whether certain evidence may be admitted. 

19 You must not concern yourself with objections made by 

20 the attorneys or with the Court's reasons for its rulings. 

21 You must not consider testimony or exhibits to which an 

22 objection has been sustained or which has been ordered 

23 stricken. Further, you must not consider anything which you 

24 may have seen or heard when the Court is not in session, even 

25 if what you see or hear is said or done by one of the parties 
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1 or by one of the witnesses. 

2 While you're here in the courtroom-- I'm sorry ln 

3 the courthouse, please always wear the badge that Jason, the 

4 marshal, gave to you which will identify you as a JUror. When 

5 you come in the morning and during breaks during the daytime 

6 or during noon recesses, no matter where you are in the 

7 courthouse, please don't make conversations with people unless 

8 they have a badge on that says they're a JUror. 

9 In every case there's two types of evidence. There's 

10 direct and circumstantial evidence. Direct evidence is 

11 testimony by a witness about what the witness personally saw, 

12 heard, or did. Circumstantial evidence is testimony or 

13 exhibits which are proof of a particular fact from which if 

14 that fact is proven, you can infer the existence of a 

15 [inaudible] . 

16 For example, if you are up late at night and you see 

17 the raln fall, it's coming-- you know, you see the rain fall 

18 and there's water everywhere. That's direct evidence because 

19 you know it rained because it's something you saw, heard or 

20 did. 

21 In contrast, circumstantial evidence would be you 

22 wake up in the morning, you see that there's water all over 

23 the ground. There's water dripping from the leaves. That's 

24 circumstantial evidence. You can find from those facts that 

25 it rained during the course of the night, even though you did 
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1 not personally see it raln. 

2 You may consider both direct and circumstantial 

3 evidence in deciding this case. The law permits you to give 

4 equal weight to both types of evidence, but it is for you to 

5 decide how much weight to give to any particular piece of 

6 evidence. 

7 Opening statements and closing arguments are intended 

8 to help you in understanding the evidence and in applying the 

9 law, but please understand that what the attorneys tell you is 

10 not evidence. They are not witnesses. They have no firsthand 

11 information and they're -- and therefore what they tell you is 

12 not evidence. 

13 I may during the trial take notes of what the 

14 witnesses are saylng. Do not make any inference from this 

15 action on my part because I'm required to be prepared for 

16 legal arguments of the attorneys during the trial. For that 

17 reason, I sometimes take extensive notes. 

18 Again, let me remind you that until this case lS 

19 submitted to you, do not talk to each other about it or about 

20 anyone who has anything to do with it until the end of the 

21 case when you go to the jury room to decide upon your verdict. 

22 Do not talk with anyone else about this case or about 

23 anyone who has anything to do with it until the trial lS ended 

24 and you've been discharged as JUrors. Anyone else includes 

25 members of your family and your friends. Those of you who are 
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1 employed, you need to tell your boss and let them know you're 

2 in a trial; however, again, you cannot give any details about 

3 the trial. 

4 Do not let anyone talk to you about the case or about 

5 anyone who has anything to do with it. If someone should try 

6 to talk to you about this case while you're serving as a 

7 juror, it's very important that you report that to Jason 

8 immediately who will then report it to the Court. 

9 Do not read any news stories or articles or listen to 

10 any radio or television or Internet reports about the case or 

11 about anyone who has anything to do with it. Do not do any 

12 research or make any investigation about the case on your own. 

13 All right. It's very important nowadays with the 

14 Internet that you don't do any type of research on this case. 

15 You don't Google the parties. You don't Google any of the 

16 terms you may hear during the course of the case. Everything 

17 that you need to know in order to come to your decision will 

18 come from what you hear inside the walls of this courtroom. 

19 The other thing you cannot do with social media. You 

20 can obviously say on social media that you're involved in a 

21 trial; however, you cannot glve any other details, thoughts, 

22 opinions, et cetera, about this trial. Do not make up your 

23 mind about what the verdict should be until after you've gone 

24 to the Jury room to decide this case and you and your fellow 

25 JUrors have discussed the evidence. 
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1 It is important throughout the trial to keep an open 

2 mind. At the end of the trial you have to make your decision 

3 based upon what you recall of the evidence. You will not have 

4 a written transcript to consult. Even though we have a court 

5 recorder who takes down the testimony, it's not typed up ln a 

6 readable format and is very difficult and time consuming for 

7 the recorder to read back testimony; therefore, I urge you to 

8 pay close attention to the testimony as it's given. 

9 Counsel, are we going to have time before 5:00 to do 

10 both openings? 

11 MR. SIMON: I think we should, right. 

12 MR. BAIRD: Could we approach, Your Honor? 

13 THE COURT: Of course. 

14 (Bench conference.) 

15 MR. MICHALEK: [Inaudible.] 

16 THE COURT: You guys haven't agreed upon with 

17 yourself. 

18 MR. BAIRD: A lot of things --don't know if any 

19 [inaudible] . 

20 THE COURT: Are they? 

21 MR. SIMON: Like what? 

22 MR. BAIRD: The pictures are ln. We know that. 

23 [Inaudible]refer to [inaudible]. 

24 

25 

MR. SIMON: No. 

MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible.] 
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1 MR. SIMON: No. 

2 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible.] 

3 MR. SIMON: Yes. 

4 MR. MICHALEK: We would have an objection because 

5 [inaudible] now [inaudible] after opening. 

6 THE COURT: Well, is it golng to affect openings? 

7 MR. BAIRD: Well, we're golng to object and go to 

8 sidebar, I guess. 

9 THE COURT: I don't want to do it ln the middle of 

10 openlngs. 

11 MR. MICHALEK: Okay. So you want to preserve --

12 THE COURT: You want to just let them go for the day 

13 and come back fresh tomorrow? I -- I cannot stay beyond 5:00. 

14 MR. BAIRD: We have to both go, but I'm comfortable 

15 trying [inaudible] . 

16 THE COURT: Going tomorrow if Mr. Simon has to leave. 

17 MR. SIMON: I don't understand what the issue is as 

18 far as future surgery? 

19 MR. MICHALEK: We have an issue with what evidence 

20 [inaudible] objection damages and future surgery, but there lS 

21 a motion [inaudible] in our objection. And we don't want any 

22 exhibits that would reference such items because we have the 

23 objection. 

24 MR. SIMON: I'm not referring to any exhibits and the 

25 Judge already ruled that the future surgery and the doctors 
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1 can testify to the cost of that. She already ruled ln that on 

2 a motion ln limine. This has all been heard. 

3 MR. MICHALEK: I understand, but we have to preserve 

4 our objection for trial, which is what we're doing, and I 

5 don't want to ln counsel's openlng. So that's fine. We'll go 

6 through openlngs 

7 THE COURT: And then you'll make an objection after? 

8 MR. MICHALEK: Make objections either tonight, in the 

9 morning? 

10 THE COURT: Okay. I mean, when you make your 

11 objection, obviously that's the standard I would use. So you 

12 can make -- I mean, how do you want to do it? We can either 

13 let the jury go today, we can resolve it now, the openlngs 

14 will have to be tomorrow. If you're going to make an 

15 objection, you're going to need to make your objection 

16 probably contemporaneously. 

17 MR. MICHALEK: Right. 

18 THE COURT: And we can elaborate upon it at the 

19 break. 

20 MR. MICHALEK: That would be fine. That would put 

21 [inaudible] come up with an objection and then collaborate 

22 [inaudible]. That's fine. 

23 

24 to --

25 

THE COURT: Is that agreeable to you or you just want 

MR. SIMON: I'd say let's just get golng. This lS an 
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1 lssue that's already been raised and decided by you. If he 

2 wants to make the objection now --

3 THE COURT: Yeah, because it affects the standard 

4 [inaudible] . 

5 MR. SIMON: Right, and just -- I mean, I'll stipulate 

6 that he made an objection during opening. 

7 THE COURT: Make the objection contemporaneously, 

8 though. 

9 MR. BAIRD: Okay. I will stand up and make my 

10 objection, Judge. 

11 THE COURT: Okay. 

12 MR. BAIRD: Okay. 

13 (End of bench conference.) 

14 THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, at this 

15 time, Mr. Simon is going to -- or Mr. Simon, I don't know 

16 which of you lS going to do it, but please present your 

17 openlng. 

18 MR. SIMON: Thank you, Your Honor. May I proceed, 

19 Your Honor? 

20 THE COURT: You may. 

21 MR. SIMON: Thank you. 

22 PLAINTIFFS' OPENING STATEMENT 

23 MR. SIMON: Good afternoon. Congratulations. You 

24 are the Jury. This case involves Christian Cervantes and 

25 Maria Abarca versus Miriam Ortega. Those are the parties. 
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1 That's who you've been selected to decide this case. 

2 Let me tell you a little story. There's a young 

3 couple golng out for a fun night out. They're going out to 

4 the Texas Station to go watch a fight, pay-per view fight. 

5 They cash their -- their paycheck and they're on their way to 

6 have a nice night out. 

7 Suddenly and without any warnlng, a car comes out of 

8 nowhere right in front of them and they smash right into the 

9 side of it. From that point on, their life has changed 

10 forever. The person who made a left turn needlessly 

11 endangered everybody on the roadway that night. 

12 As she came across, there was no time to avoid the 

13 accident. She deflected off of that car and went into even 

14 another car. This is not a little light tap or bumper 

15 situation in a parking lot. This is a serious accident that 

16 resulted in serious harm. 

17 The ambulance comes. The police come. The fire 

18 department comes. They all investigate. The passenger inside 

19 the car is crylng, scared. The ambulance takes her out of the 

20 car, puts her on a backboard. That's right. 

21 (Pause in proceedings.) 

22 MR. SIMON: At the scene of the accident, the fire 

23 department comes. The police comes. The ambulance comes. 

24 They take the passenger out of the front seat. Upon impact 

25 their body was thrown forwards and backwards and locked up by 
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1 the seatbelt. They were scared. They were crylng. She's 

2 taken out of the car, put on a backboard, put a cervical 

3 collar on, and transported to UMC trauma. 

4 The driver of the vehicle, he was scared. He was 

5 scared for his wife ln the passenger seat. He talked with the 

6 police. He drove his car home and then met his wife at the 

7 hospital. The young couple who all they wanted was a fun 

8 night out, their life changed forever at that point. 

9 That young couple is my clients, Christian and Maria, 

10 and that is why we're here. This is why we're here. That is 

11 their vehicle. After this accident, their car was totaled. 

12 The Defendant -- there's a picture of the front of their car 

13 after impacting the side of the other car. 

14 The Defendant's car, which is Ms. Ortega's vehicle, 

15 and she was the one who pulled needlessly in front of them 

16 causlng the impact with no time to react, that's her vehicle. 

17 And her vehicle was towed from the scene and also totaled. 

18 This was a serious accident that resulted in serious 

19 injuries, and that's what the evidence will show in this case. 

20 I think you heard a little bit in voir dire. She is not golng 

21 to tell you it's her fault because it would be silly if she 

22 tried to come before you at this stage and say it's not 

23 because the evidence is clear. 

24 When disputes can't get resolved, what happens is 

25 people have to file a lawsuit. That's the only way it can get 
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1 resolved. And if the parties can't come together and resolve 

2 it, we have trials and we have juries just like you to help 

3 decide the case. 

4 What's fair and reasonable based on the events that 

5 happened? There's no dispute this accident happened. There's 

6 no dispute that it was serlous. And there's not going to be 

7 any dispute that she is at fault. 

8 So this lawsuit was filed alleging that she was at 

9 fault and they claim serlous injuries. This was filed on 

10 August 20th of 2012. Yes, it takes a long time to come 

11 through this judicial process. And it's not easy coming 

12 through this judicial process. It's not easy being in their 

13 position. They don't want to be here and in this position. 

14 This is not easy on anyone. 

15 So they filed a lawsuit. And what they alleged is 

16 that on November 12, 2011, they were traveling in their white 

17 Impala heading westbound on Lake Mead, suddenly and without 

18 any warning, Ms. Pizarro-Ortega made an lmproper left turn 

19 causlng a violent collision with the Plaintiffs' vehicle. 

20 Seems pretty obvious from the pictures and what 

21 happened. Ms. Ortega knew what she did. She made an improper 

22 left turn. And as a result of her acts, the Plaintiffs 

23 suffered severe injuries, including injuries to their neck, 

24 back, heads and shoulder. 

25 She knows they were injured at the scene because they 
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1 left in an ambulance; however, her lawyers filed an answer for 

2 her because that's what's required. Plaintiff files a 

3 complaint. The lawyers file an answer. 

4 MR. BAIRD: Objection, Your Honor. May we approach? 

5 THE COURT: Hold on. Yes. 

6 (Bench conference.) 

7 MR. BAIRD: This is lmproper. [Inaudible.] There's 

8 nothing prejudice -- there's nothing wrong with defending 

9 yourself ln a lawsuit. He's trying to prejudice my client, 

10 make her look bad [inaudible] defending herself [inaudible] 

11 answer to their [inaudible] . 

12 MR. SIMON: These are the pleadings ln the case. I 

13 can use them however I want at trial. These are the pleadings 

14 that they filed. 

15 MR. BAIRD: He's argulng admitted facts, which lS 

16 pure prejudice. 

17 MR. SIMON: They're not --

18 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible.] 

19 MR. SIMON: They're not admitted facts. 

20 THE COURT: I don't want to sound like they're 

21 avoiding responsibility by filing by answering the 

22 complaint. 

23 MR. SIMON: I'm just pointing out what they filed in 

24 a -- ln a pleading. That's all I'm doing. I could have the 

25 clerk read the pleadings if I wanted to. 
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1 THE COURT: Yeah, you can. 

2 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible.] 

3 MR. SIMON: So I'm just -- I'm just showing them the 

4 pleadings and how this lawsuit starts. 

5 THE COURT: You can like that, but don't argue 

6 they're avoiding liability. 

8 Avoiding responsibility because they have 

9 

10 Of course they do. 

11 and not to settle. 

12 Of course they do. 

13 Okay. 

14 (End of bench conference.) 

15 MR. SIMON: So in their answer that they filed on 

16 12/31/2012 --Ms. Ortega's represented by this law firm. They 

17 filed a response to the lawsuit. And what they say is that to 

18 the extent they contain allegations of fact, Defendants 

19 neither admit or deny the allegations because they don't have 

20 sufficient information to form a belief. 

21 I submit to you that they do have sufficient 

22 information to form a belief and this is something that was 

23 just filed and at this time not admitting to what happened. 

24 Realizing how silly that would appear in front of people like 

25 you --
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1 MR. BAIRD: Objection, Your Honor. May we approach? 

2 THE COURT: Yes. 

3 MR. SIMON: -- they file --

4 (Bench conference.) 

5 MR. BAIRD: To call my client silly for what's in a 

6 pleading [inaudible] trying to -- defame is not the right 

7 word. He's trying to [inaudible] the jury that my client 

8 simply answered with what information she had at that time. 

9 This is totally inappropriate. He can say she did not 

10 [inaudible]. "Silly" is inappropriate. 

11 MR. SIMON: Judge, just because they want to come ln 

12 now and-- and concede fault, they didn't do that in the 

13 initial pleading. And he filed an amended answer that 

14 without leave of court that's not even a legitimate answer 

15 that ever got approved. He just decided to file it. Those 

16 are inconsistent pleadings that I can argue goes to their 

17 credibility. It's their defense, just like any other pleading 

18 in the case. 

19 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible] credibility. 

20 MR. SIMON: Of course they can. 

21 MR. BAIRD: You can't you can't lmpugn someone. 

22 You can't say, how dare they, how dare they plead in their own 

23 defense. This is not how you do it. 

24 

25 show. 

MR. SIMON: That's what the evidence lS golng to 
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1 THE COURT: Okay. I think there's a distinction. 

2 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible.] 

3 THE COURT: I think -- I think it's fair game to 

4 point out distinctions. Obviously you could do that too, 

5 okay? I don't think -- I don't really care for the use of the 

6 word "silly." And there's something else you brought up. 

7 There's another point you made, and I'm sorry, I just lost it. 

8 MR. SIMON: It's okay. I lose -- I lose my points 

9 now and then. 

10 THE COURT: I'm sorry. I was just thinking on it 

11 agaln. My biggest concern is I don't want to go into the fact 

12 they're trying to avoid responsibility for this accident. 

13 MR. SIMON: Well, no, but --

14 MR. BAIRD: Using those words, Your Honor, we're 

15 argulng. We're not talking about evidence [inaudible]. 

16 MR. SIMON: I'm showing them the evidence. The 

17 pleadings are the evidence in this case. They are. They are. 

18 That's what started the lawsuit. 

19 THE COURT: Well, the pleadings can be read into 

20 evidence, if you guys wish. 

21 MR. BAIRD: They can be read. They can be read, but 

22 he's commenting on them. This isn't evidence they're going to 

23 recelve. This is just him trying to [inaudible] --

24 

25 

MR. SIMON: Judge, this is opening statements. 

MR. BAIRD: It's not supposed to be argument. 
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1 MR. SIMON: It's not argument. This is what the 

2 evidence is going to show them. I'm showing them what it lS. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. See, if you're showing them the 

4 evidence is going to show they went from disputing liability 

5 to admitting liability, right? 

6 MR. SIMON: Right. 

7 THE COURT: And that's it. 

8 MR. SIMON: Right. 

9 THE COURT: And that's it. 

10 MR. SIMON: Right. 

11 MR. BAIRD: No name calling. No saylng they're silly 

12 or it's foolish. 

13 MR. SIMON: Judge, if he's golng to object to every 

14 word I use throughout the whole trial, this is going to be a 

15 long time. This is opening statements. This is 

16 THE COURT: I understand that. I think you 

17 understand--

18 MR. SIMON: -- I know. I believe the evidence is 

19 golng to show that their position is silly and that's what the 

20 position is going to be. It's just opening statements. 

21 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible.] 

22 MR. SIMON: I won't use the word "silly" if you don't 

23 want me to use the word "silly". 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. SIMON: Okay. 
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1 (End of bench conference.) 

2 MR. SIMON: Realizing that their position initially 

3 lS unfounded, they then file an amendment to the initial 

4 response. This was filed on January 24th changing their 

5 position. Now they decide that they want to admit to who 

6 caused the accident. 

7 To the extent they contain allegations of fact, Ms. 

8 Ortega admits breach of duty, liability for negligence, and 

9 neither admits or denies the remaining allegations contained 

10 ln the complaint. So now they've decided to admit a portion 

11 of the allegations, but still want to continue to fight the 

12 rest. The evidence is going to show that they have no basis 

13 to continue to fight the rest of the case either and that the 

14 sole purpose lS going to be to save money. 

15 Now, I ask I told you about Christian Cervantes. 

16 He's a gentleman of 27 years of age. These are young people. 

17 He works full time at Pioneer Gypsum Mine. For seven years he 

18 works there. He's a machine operator were he operates a 

19 forklift. 

20 He's been doing that before the accident without any 

21 lssues. He continues to work afterwards. However, you will 

22 hear that he does have issues, but he's never stopped working 

23 because he couldn't. What he enjoyed doing before the 

24 accident lS playing soccer, going to the movies, and walks. 

25 He lS married to Maria Abarca. She is 29 years of 
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1 age. And so what she did lS she's an asplrlng mom and you're 

2 golng to learn that she's been trying to get pregnant for a 

3 while. She is married and desperately they want to have a 

4 family and at the time of this accident she was actually 

5 getting injections for fertility. 

6 And when she was in this accident, when the seatbelt 

7 locked up and caused abdominal injuries, she was scared. 

8 We're not claiming that she can't have kids because of this 

9 accident, but that was an issue that was going through her 

10 mind at the time. 

11 She does do housekeeping and cleans houses. And she 

12 also enjoys walks with her husband, among other things that 

13 you will learn throughout the course of the trial. They've 

14 dated since 2008 and they were married after this accident. 

15 So despite being in the accident together and having these 

16 injuries, they still nurture their relationship and went onto 

17 get married. 

18 November 12, 2011, lS when this accident occurred. 

19 Facts about Christian before: He was ln good health. He was 

20 young. He was enjoying life. He had no prior injuries to his 

21 neck and back. He was not treating with any doctor. He did 

22 not have a disc lnJury before this accident. Nobody gave him 

23 an MRI. Nobody recommended injections. Nobody recommended 

24 surgery. He was in good health as a 27-year-old. 

25 After this accident, when he went to the hospital to 
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1 check on his wife, he started feeling nauseous and started 

2 vomiting at the hospital. He was then seen by the doctors at 

3 the hospital for those complaints. Within three days, he 

4 started developing neck paln and low back pain. His neck paln 

5 has gone away. His low back pain has not. 

6 He underwent a short course of chiropractic treatment 

7 and his neck pain went away. And his pain, what we call waxes 

8 and wanes. It comes and goes. It's some times more severe 

9 than others. And some times it's bearable, and some times 

10 it's not; but this is something that's never gone away Slnce 

11 the accident. It is still an ongoing lingering effect of the 

12 accident. 

13 Christian's injuries for the low back is what we 

14 describe as multiple components of the low back. On the 

15 outside we have muscles and ligaments. And when you're in an 

16 accident and your body is thrown around, those muscles and 

17 ligaments are torn and stretched. Sometimes people refer to 

18 that as soft tissue injuries. 

19 But the same forces that cause those injuries, also 

20 cause ripping and tearing sometimes in a disc, and that lS an 

21 underlying spinal condition that happens at the same time. 

22 Christian had both of these injuries. A lumbar strain, and he 

23 treated with a chiropractor for that. 

24 But when that pain didn't ultimately go away, the 

25 doctors started looking a little bit deeper. And what they 
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1 found is that he has a disc bulge and that is causlng his low 

2 back and leg paln. They've even identified the exact level of 

3 this lnJury, which is the L5-S1 level. They also identified a 

4 little bit at the L4-5 level. 

5 And they know this because it's proven by several 

6 different tools they use to identify these injuries. An MRI 

7 is one such tool and diagnostic test. The MRI's don't lie. 

8 Also, this lS proven by what's called a discogram where paln 

9 management specialists can stick a needle in your splne and 

10 inject die into your disc space and they test the integrity of 

11 your disc. 

12 And if your disc can't hold up to the dye that's 

13 being injected, they know that that disc is now bad and torn 

14 and injured. The only possible way this disc can now be 

15 injured is from the car accident because there's no other 

16 cause. 

17 You'll learn that Christian also saw Dr. Coppel, 

18 who's another pain management specialist. I'll go into him a 

19 little bit later. But he also did injections and he did 

20 diagnostic injections into the right area that relieved some 

21 of the pain for a short time and that helps the doctors learn 

22 that what's causing the paln is that specific disc. Both of 

23 these doctors learned that. 

24 There is really no question that their injuries 

25 occurred from this accident. The other thing is that once the 
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1 disc lS torn, it doesn't really get better. And as people age 

2 over time, it worsens when they do their normal daily 

3 activities, their normal work duties, it can worsen. 

4 Maria was also in good health. She had no prior 

5 lnJury to her neck or back. She was not treating with anyone 

6 and she did not have a disc injury before this collision; 

7 however, after she had immediate pain in her neck, abdomen and 

8 back paln. 

9 She's taken by ambulance to UMC trauma noting these 

10 complaints. Her pain also waxes and wanes. The only 

11 conclusion that you will reach at the end of this case lS that 

12 Christian and Maria both sustained permanent injuries and now 

13 have to suffer with this for the remainder of their life. 

14 So how these injuries happened is that when you're ln 

15 a violent collision where you are hitting something suddenly 

16 and without any warning at 35 miles per hour and then you 

17 stop, your whole body is being thrown forward and backwards 

18 being caught by the seatbelt. 

19 They were both wearlng their seatbelt and their body 

20 was thrown forwards and backwards. This causes the stretching 

21 of the spine and the ripping of the discs. And you'll hear 

22 from the doctors who will tell you all about that. As I 

23 mentioned before, this type of force tears the muscles, 

24 ligaments and the disc, all at one time. 

25 You will also see on the MRI as presented where there 
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1 are findings that support and are consistent with the cause of 

2 the paln that they're reporting. Here's a normal disc where 

3 you have the nucleus of the disc that's filled with fluid, 

4 kind of like a jelly donut. And when that disc is ripped, the 

5 fluid starts seeplng out like a jelly donut. 

6 And the fluid inside has chemical chemicals in it 

7 that irritate the nerves and the spine and over years that 

8 chemical gets worse, and that's the reason that you have to 

9 have surgery is you have to take out the bad disc that's 

10 leaking and put in a bone graft. Dr. Coppel will be here to 

11 explain that process. Here are the type of disc disruptions 

12 that you can have. So here you see the fluids leaking out. 

13 Christian went to UMC trauma the day of complaining 

14 of nausea and headaches. He did not complain of neck or back 

15 pain at UMC. His adrenaline lS still going and he is 

16 basically throwing up after the accident. UMC trauma, all 

17 they really are concerned about lS making sure that you don't 

18 need emergency surgery, you're not paralyzed, you can actually 

19 walk out of the hospital. 

20 They instruct you to follow up with a prlmary care 

21 physician because they know that these injuries can get worse 

22 in the next few days, and that's exactly what happened. He 

23 went to Dr. Adair, who you'll hear from tomorrow. She's a 

24 chiropractor who specializes in these type of car injuries. 

25 He complained of headache, neck pain and low back. 
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1 In addition to Dr. Adair, he was also treating with 

2 Dr. Koka's group. Dr. Koka is a doctor who oversees the 

3 chiropractic treatment and he also administers paln 

4 medications to help them through this process. He was the 

5 primary care physician initially. You will also hear from him 

6 describing the injuries from the accident. 

7 Dr. Coppel, he's a paln management specialist from 

8 John Hopkins who operates his own surgery center and performs 

9 injections. So when a patient doesn't respond with 

10 chiropractic care, they send them to Dr. Coppel. He's the 

11 specialist. Dr. Coppel did injections in the lumbar spine 

12 which gave temporary relief, and that tells these doctors that 

13 this is a permanent problem that can't be fixed with just 

14 injections. 

15 Dr. Lanzkowsky, another board certified paln 

16 management doctor. He later saw Dr. -- or Christian after Dr. 

17 Coppel had released him, and he also specializes in that. And 

18 he did something a little bit different. He did the discogram 

19 test. And the discogram is what confirmed the bad disc that 

20 Christian has. 

21 Dr. Lanzkowsky, after performing his discogram 

22 confirming the bad disc at L5-S1 level, says, you know what? 

23 We need to get a neuro surgeon involved. Dr. Lanzkowsky sends 

24 Christian to Dr. Kaplan. He's a board certified neurosurgeon 

25 from Harvard. Very well credentialed. And he's confirmed 
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1 Christian needs surgery. 

2 The problem with this lS that although he needs the 

3 surgery 

4 MR. BAIRD: Objection, Your Honor. May we approach? 

5 (Bench conference.) 

6 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible] my objection about future 

7 surgerles. [Inaudible.] 

8 THE COURT: Okay. 

9 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible . ] 

10 THE COURT: Yeah. Yes, that's fine. 

11 MR. BAIRD: Thank you. 

12 MR. SIMON: Thank you, Your Honor. 

13 (End of bench conference.) 

14 THE COURT: And, Counsel, you said objection 

15 [inaudible]? 

16 MR. BAIRD: Pardon? 

17 THE COURT: Objection regarding future surgery and 

18 we'll discuss that later. 

19 MR. BAIRD: Yes. 

20 THE COURT: Thank you. 

21 MR. SIMON: Dr. Kaplan, who looks at the MRI, he 

22 looks at the discogram, he looks at all of the records, he 

23 determines that Christian is a candidate for a L5-S1 fusion. 

24 It is a very serious operation that carries with it serious 

25 consequences. 
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1 The difficult situation is that he's 27 years old, 

2 and to race in for a surgery like this is a very difficult 

3 thing. He's going to want to wait as long as he possibly can 

4 for this type of surgery. So what he has to do at this stage 

5 is to deal with the pain, try and enjoy life as he can now. 

6 So the orders from the doctors is that they initially 

7 -- they performed exams. They ordered tests. They ordered 

8 MRis. They ordered therapy. And they all concluded after all 

9 of their treatment that he has this disc problem that lS 

10 permanent, and they all agree that it was caused from the 

11 accident and that's why we're here. 

12 His treatment timeline I'll just go over real 

13 quickly. Started on the day of the accident and develops neck 

14 pain within a day. He sees a chiropractor within three days. 

15 She orders tests and x-rays. He sees Dr. Koka within ten 

16 days, who confirms everything that's already been going on. 

17 Then they get an MRI when all of it is not going away. Comes 

18 back positive. This is all within a few months of the 

19 accident. 

20 Dr. Adair is concerned and refers to Dr. Coppel. Dr. 

21 Coppel does his own examination. He also -- then he does the 

22 injections. And then after the injections, he was instructed 

23 to return, if necessary. He was never pain free in his low 

24 back during any of this treatment and he's never been pain 

25 free today in his low back. 
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1 He then saw Dr. Lanzkowsky at the end of '13. So 

2 there is what some people call a gap in treatment, but the gap 

3 in treatment is because he already did what he was supposed to 

4 initially. And they said there's nothing more we can do for 

5 you, try to go back to your life as normal, and if things 

6 worsen, come back. And that's exactly what he did. 

7 He then performs the discogram, which was positive, 

8 and then they send him to Dr. Kaplan. That's basically the 

9 end of the time line for active treatment. These are the 

10 specialists in this case who do this for a living. They treat 

11 people with spinal disorders and disc injuries and they both 

12 confirm that, yes, he's a candidate for disc injury. 

13 So the future treatment that you will likely see from 

14 the evidence is that he's going to need a lumbar fusion, 

15 surgical procedure. He may need some injections to help 

16 maintain that to hopefully avoid this for some time. He's 

17 going to still take medications when he has flare-ups or he lS 

18 in pain. He may have some chiropractic or physical therapy. 

19 Not every day, not every week, but maybe for a month here and 

20 there; and then he has to see physicians and they are still 

21 going to order tests for him. 

22 So now turning to Maria. She goes to UMC trauma and 

23 then also follows up with Dr. Adair within three days. Her 

24 paln complaints are consistent with what she had at UMC and 

25 then she has back pain and right shoulder pain because of the 
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1 seatbelt locking up and her body being thrown forward. She 

2 had abdominal pain and the shoulder pain. She had bruising. 

3 There's no doubt that her body [inaudible] traumatized from 

4 this violent impact. 

5 Dr. Koka also oversaw his care -- or her care. Dr. 

6 Coppel also saw her because her MRI was also positive. She 

7 went through the conservative treatment that you are expected 

8 to from an accident like this. They performed physical 

9 therapy. They ordered the MRI's that shows the lnJury, and 

10 she too has a permanent injury to her low back. They all 

11 agree that it was caused from this accident and nothing else. 

12 She had somewhat similar treatment, but they had 

13 different complaints. She had a shoulder injury. Christian 

14 did not. She had abdominal that Christian did not. Her 

15 [inaudible] were different in the neck and back, which you'll 

16 see. 

17 But one thing they do have in common is that the same 

18 level of their discs, although slightly different in 

19 appearance and finding, were both injured and damaged. And 

20 the reason that that happened to both of them is because they 

21 were both sitting, thrown forwards and backwards, and that 

22 part of the spine is the bottom disc and it's the first one to 

23 go. 

24 There's no mistake why it happened to both of them. 

25 She goes to the conservative therapy. Gives her some 
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1 momentary relief and, ln fact, the chiropractic treatment that 

2 she was receiving is excellent. And you'll hear from Dr. 

3 Adair how she responded. She was doing great. She even got 

4 to some days levels of being pain free and was excited about 

5 that. 

6 But, unfortunately, the paln did return because when 

7 the [inaudible] stops taking the medications and the treatment 

8 stops and she tries to go back to her normal daily activities 

9 golng back to try and clean a house and do what she does to 

10 earn money, guess what? The pain is there. 

11 And what you need to keep in mind throughout this 

12 whole case, she did all of those things without pain before 

13 the accident. But when she tries to go back and do it after 

14 the accident, she's in pain, and that's changed her life 

15 because mobility lS a key issue that everyone needs to 

16 survlve. 

17 And these people are young people. As they grow 

18 older, which we're going to ask you to consider at a later 

19 time, as they grow older, things will get more difficult. 

20 Their injuries will likely worsen. Their ability to do what 

21 they can do now is more difficult. And those are some of the 

22 things we're golng to ask you to think about. 

23 Dr. Adair also refers her to Dr. Coppel, and he 

24 confirms the injury too. He does some steroid injections at 

25 that level which only provided temporary relief, but she's 
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1 released from treatment and has ongolng paln ln a very similar 

2 way as Christian. 

3 Dr. Coppel only did one round of injections with her. 

4 He did two rounds with Christian. And then she followed up 

5 with Dr. [Inaudible] and his partner did some injections, as 

6 well, in January of '14. He will be here to describe the 

7 nature of the injuries, his treatment, his injections, the 

8 reason for his injections, and why it's all related to this 

9 accident. 

10 Maria did not see Dr. Kaplan. She did not have a 

11 discogram, but she did have an MRI that was positive, and so 

12 you'll hear from Dr. Lanzkowsky telling you about what 

13 reasonable future treatment she may need. 

14 There's no doubt about it that this accident was a 

15 life-changing event. To the degree of how it changed their 

16 life is going to be for all of you to decide. Because they 

17 are so young, you may look at it and say, well, they look 

18 pretty healthy to me. They're walking around. They're not ln 

19 a wheelchair. These are real injuries that only worsen over 

20 time. 

21 So we talked a lot about in jury selection the easy 

22 standard more likely than not, the 51-percent rule. When you 

23 hear the word "probability," that is evidence that says I met 

24 my standard. When you heard the term "reasonable degree of 

25 medical probability" or "more likely than not," that means the 
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1 evidence I get from the stand from these witnesses means I'm 

2 meeting my burden. 

3 Possibility lS nothing but speculation and 

4 conjecture. You just heard one of the instructions the Judge 

5 read to you, says you can't consider speculation. So when you 

6 hear the words "possible, isn't it possible," that's nothing 

7 but guesswork that you can't rely on. 

8 In personal injury cases like this when someone's 

9 injured ln an accident, we prove the cases through the 

10 doctors. How we do that is the patient goes to the doctor. 

11 They report their pain complaints on any given day. The 

12 doctor writes it down. He performs a physical examination, 

13 looks at all the evidence, and he renders a diagnosis. Then 

14 he also glves them a recommended treatment plan. 

15 That medical record is our evidence in the case. 

16 These doctors who testify is the evidence in the case. These 

17 doctors are trained professionals. They know how to do 

18 examinations in diagnosing. 

19 In fact, they have an obligation to make the correct 

20 diagnosis. They take an oath, a hippocratic oath to try and 

21 get these people better and they have an obligation to be 

22 truthful and honest with you. And when you hear them, that's 

23 the proof that we're giving you: The treating physicians who 

24 have actually treated them, examined them, and they're the 

25 ones that make the recommendations. 
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1 You're golng to hear from Dr. Lanzkowsky. He 

2 specializes in pain management. Did the discogram. You're 

3 going to hear from Dr. Kaplan, the neurosurgeon. Dr. Koka, 

4 also a physician, he's a physician that owns several different 

5 urgent cares. He doesn't just do personal injury accidents. 

6 It's a small portion of his business. 

7 Dr. Adair, a chiropractor. She does specialize in a 

8 lot of these type of cases that treats -- so she's a good 

9 person to identify the type of injuries that stem from 

10 traumatic events, and you'll hear from her. 

11 Dr. Coppel, we took his deposition. You're not golng 

12 to hear from him personally, but we're golng to read a portion 

13 of his deposition for you to consider. And the Judge will 

14 tell you that reading the deposition is like him appearing 

15 here in court. You consider his evidence as read from the 

16 stand the same as if he was here testifying. 

17 Christian and Maria had zero paln until the 

18 collision. They had no new accidents, new traumas, nothing 

19 else they can blame their current condition on. This lS an 

20 easy case for you guys. Discovery, which you heard a little 

21 bit from Mr. Baird about what the evidence is in this case, 

22 this is a process to learn facts. So either they can 

23 undermine the case or we can support it. 

24 We have subpoenas. You're going to learn that we can 

25 go out and get whatever records we want. They had the same 
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1 opportunity to go out and get whatever records or information 

2 they want. They get to learn the medical history of my 

3 clients. 

4 They get to take their depositions. Have them 

5 testify under oath, which is not a fun process to be grueled 

6 and cross-examined about their medical history and their 

7 history, and then they have to go see their doctors. 

8 They get to interview witnesses. They hire their own 

9 experts where they had to go and meet with them and be 

10 questioned again about their medical history and whether 

11 they're being truthful. No stone was left unturned and nobody 

12 could find a history that they had any neck or back complaints 

13 prlor to this accident. The reason for that, they don't have 

14 one. 

15 MR. BAIRD: Objection, Your Honor. May we approach? 

16 (Bench conference.) 

17 MR. BAIRD: This line is what the Defendant goes to 

18 great lengths to protect against. 

19 THE COURT: What? 

20 MR. BAIRD: He says the Defendant goes to great 

21 lengths [inaudible] . That is a clear reference to lnsurance 

22 right there. 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: I didn't even pick up on that. 

MR. BAIRD: That's what he said. 

MR. SIMON: Okay. 
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1 MR. BAIRD: I mean, [inaudible] he's trying to make 

2 them think about the fact that [inaudible] corporation 

3 lnsurance company. 

4 MR. SIMON: Well, the fact lS, you know, you have 

5 lawyers, you got the Plaintiff, the Defendant. 

6 MR. BAIRD: He said the Defendant [inaudible], not 

7 defense team [inaudible] . 

8 THE COURT: You know, I'm reluctant to even bring it 

9 up to the jury because I don't want to call attention to it. 

10 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible] we can argue it later, but 

11 it's starting to look like a pattern [inaudible], but I don't 

12 think he should refer to "it" as the Defendant any more. 

13 MR. SIMON: Okay. 

14 THE COURT: Fair enough. 

15 MR. BAIRD: Thank you. 

16 (End of bench conference.) 

17 MR. SIMON: At the end of the day, Ms. Ortega made 

18 certain choices on the day of this accident that needlessly 

19 endangered all of the people on the roadway. Not just my 

20 clients, but they just happened to be the ones that were there 

21 that day. 

22 What lS clear is my clients didn't do anything wrong. 

23 They didn't ask for this. They didn't go out that night 

24 hoping to get into an accident and have to be taken by 

25 ambulance and go to the hospital. They didn't ask for this. 
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1 The only issue for you people to decide at the end of 

2 this case lS what's fair for their injuries based on the 

3 evidence that you hear from the doctors and you'll hear from 

4 them. And then you have to all agree on a sum of money that's 

5 fair and keeping ln mind that they're young and these are the 

6 type of injuries that get worse, and as they get older, how is 

7 that going to affect their lives. 

8 What the evidence is also golng to show is that the 

9 Defense is going to have different positions. They're going 

10 to argue --well, at least initially-- maybe I'm not at 

11 fault. But if I am at fault, they weren't injured. If they 

12 were injured, they're not injured as bad as they're saylng 

13 they're injured. But if they're injured as bad as the medical 

14 records prove and the doctors prove, then the treatment they 

15 got wasn't necessary, wasn't reasonable. But, wait a minute. 

16 If the treatment they underwent was reasonable, it's now with 

17 the costs, maybe the cost of it is not reasonable. 

18 It's just an ongoing-- what I call the onion defense 

19 because when one thing on the outer layer doesn't work, they 

20 just peel it off and try to go to the next layer. Then they 

21 peel that off if that doesn't work and they go to the next 

22 layer. 

23 You'll see when the witnesses hit the stand what 

24 these excuses are. Dr. Duke lS a retained expert by the 

25 Defendants. He's a neurosurgeon, does spine surgery, but what 
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1 you'll learn is his servlces are for sale. The Defendants in 

2 these types of cases like to use Dr. Duke and the reason they 

3 like to use Dr. --

4 JY[R. BAIRD: Objection, Your Honor. Can we approach? 

5 THE COURT: Yes. 

6 (Bench conference.) 

7 JY[R. BAIRD: First off, this is a lot of argument ln 

8 openlng, but now he's making [inaudible] --

9 JYrR. SIMON: I didn't make it. I did not say that. 

10 JYrR. BAIRD: "Services are for sale," you don't have 

11 to quote another case to violate the law, and that's what he's 

12 doing. 

13 THE COURT: I think this lS exceeding the scope of 

14 openlngs. 

15 JYrR. SIMON: Well, that's what the evidence lS golng 

16 to show. Dr. Duke is going to come in here and --

17 JYrR. BAIRD: All of his doctors 

18 THE COURT: Hold on. Dr. Duke lS golng to come ln, 

19 that's what the evidence will probably show, but it's -- I 

20 think it's argument that he's a hired gun, that he always 

21 testifies for the defense. I think that's lmproper. 

22 

23 show. 

24 

25 

JYrR. SIMON: But that's what the evidence is golng to 

JYrR. BAIRD: No. 

JYrR. SIMON: No? 
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1 THE COURT: That's argument. 

2 JY[R. SIMON: Okay. All right. 

3 (End of bench conference.) 

4 JY[R. BAIRD: Your Honor? 

5 THE COURT: I'm sorry? 

6 JY[R. SIMON: What? 

7 JY[R. BAIRD: Oh, yeah. Could we approach? 

8 THE COURT: Sure. 

9 (Bench conference.) 

10 JYrR. BAIRD: My objection, he puts a whole line of 

11 dollar Slgns 

12 JYrR. SIMON: I just whipped through this. I just had 

13 to get to the next line. 

14 JYrR. MICHALEK: You showed the Jury everything that 

15 they were going to say. 

16 JYrR. SIMON: I just whipped through it to get to the 

17 next line. I didn't it was like this quick, seconds. 

18 THE COURT: It was pretty fast. It's just a line and 

19 then a quarter of the line. 

20 JYrR. MICHALEK: When the jury has reached [inaudible] 

21 show the entire document [inaudible] he went very slowly, it 

22 was up there 

23 

24 

25 seconds. 

JYrR. SIMON: That's not true. That's not true. 

JYrR. MICHALEK: -- it was up there for [inaudible] 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
139 

00467



1 MR. SIMON: And you know what, Judge? I'm tired of 

2 -- I'm tired of this double-teaming. One -- one lawyer one 

3 cause. 

4 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible.] 

5 THE COURT: All right. So what -- okay. 

6 (End of bench conference.) 

7 MR. SIMON: Throughout the course of this trial, the 

8 one thing that is important for all of you lS you're to rely 

9 on the evidence. And what lawyers say, myself, or other 

10 counsel is not evidence. What comes from the witness stand or 

11 the documents that you get to look at or that you're shown, 

12 that's the evidence that you have to rely on. 

13 I talked a little bit about harms and losses, that 

14 you can't consider any other factors except the harms and the 

15 losses. What you're going to find is the harms and losses in 

16 this case, that's what goes into the verdict, the amount of 

17 money that you have to decide on to go into the verdict. 

18 Past medical expenses are one of the items. You're 

19 golng to learn that Christian now has over $56,000 in medical 

20 expenses to date. Maria has 43,000 incurred to this day. You 

21 will also at the end of the trial think about future medical 

22 expenses. 

23 You will also have to think about paln and suffering. 

24 That's the amount of money for pain and suffering for what 

25 they've been through, for the procedures they've gone through, 
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1 for having to undergo injections, to have needles stuck in 

2 you; to be stuck in a cylinder to have an MRI; to have to go 

3 to doctors' visits. And these are all things they don't want 

4 to go to. These aren't fun things for them to do to spend 

5 their day. Those are the type of things for you to consider. 

6 You'll also hear how their life has been disrupted 

7 and how the injuries have affected their enjoyment on life. 

8 You'll also have to consider that. Those are the type of 

9 things that go into the verdict. What the impact these 

10 injuries have had on their life now and in the future. 

11 Now, you as jurors, you have your own rights. You 

12 have a right to hear everything from the stand. So if you 

13 can't hear anything, you raise your hand and the Judge will 

14 call on you. 

15 We're not allowed to talk to you, so you might see me 

16 out in the hallway. I'm not being rude, but we're not allowed 

17 to talk to you. That goes for me or other counsel. But you 

18 have the right to hear everything from the stand. If you 

19 can't hear it, ask them, and the Judge will help you out. 

20 You also have the right to make sure other JUrors are 

21 only considering the harms and the losses. So when you go 

22 back in that deliberation room, you have a right to say, hey, 

23 you're thinking about other stuff. We're only supposed to 

24 consider the harms and the losses. 

25 And you have the right to make sure everyone else lS 
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1 uslng the correct standard, the 51-percent standard, we're 

2 more right than wrong. You don't have to be sure when you go 

3 in that jury room. You only have to know was it more right 

4 than wrong, 51 percent. 

5 If somebody refuses to follow this law and these 

6 rules, you go get the bailiff. You tell the bailiff these 

7 guys aren't following the law and they'll go get the judge 

8 because it's a very serious situation and I think that all of 

9 you will take your oath serious. 

10 Your verdict, which we'll be asking you for, will 

11 ultimately affect the community. And the reason it will 

12 affect the community because --

13 MR. BAIRD: Objection, Your Honor. 

14 THE COURT: Yes. 

15 (Bench conference.) 

16 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible] argument ln openlng. Someone 

17 needlessly endangers all of us, this is clear golden rule. 

18 [Inaudible.] 

19 MR. SIMON: It's not a golden rule argument. I'm not 

20 asking them to put themselves in the place of the Plaintiffs. 

21 That's the golden argument. 

22 MR. BAIRD: [Inaudible.] 

23 THE COURT: How is it golng to affect the community? 

24 MR. SIMON: All these decisions --well, it's going 

25 to affect the community because all verdicts affect our 
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1 community. This is golng to be another verdict. 

2 THE COURT: Objection sustained. 

3 (End of bench conference.) 

4 THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, you 

5 will be instructed to disregard the prior statements by 

6 Counsel. Please continue. 

7 MR. SIMON: Thank you, Your Honor. I submit to you 

8 that it's a contract when somebody does something that hurts 

9 anyone else, they are responsible for the harm. And that's 

10 all we're here for. That's our social contract. That's what 

11 the law requires and that's why we're here, because if you 

12 breach your social contract and get away with it, it harms 

13 everybody. 

14 So the power of the jury is you guys. The reason 

15 that you have power in this case is because you get to decide 

16 the fate of Christian and Maria. Your decision will affect 

17 their lives forever and they are putting their fate in your 

18 hands to reach a fair decision in this case. However, your 

19 power lS limited because you can't make or apologize for what 

20 she did. She may apologize, she may not, but you can't make 

21 her. 

22 You can't put them in a place that they were before 

23 the collision and kind of erase this and say it never 

24 happened, which is what they would like. The law only allows 

25 you to award money. That's it. And those are the harms and 
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1 losses that you're golng to learn throughout the course of 

2 this case, and that's where your power lS. Thank you for your 

3 time. 

4 THE COURT: All right. Thank you, Counsel. Ladies 

5 and gentlemen of the jury, unfortunately we don't have time 

6 for Defense counsel to do his opening, so we'll do it 

7 tomorrow. 

8 Again, you're golng to hear this admonishment so many 

9 times over the course of the trial you will probably be able 

10 to say it for me, but I am obligated to tell you. Again, 

11 you're obligated-- you are instructed not to converse among 

12 yourselves or with anyone on any subject connected with the 

13 trial. Do not read, watch, or listen to any report of or 

14 commentary on the trial. Do not form or express an oplnlon on 

15 this case until it's submitted to you. 

16 We'll see you tomorrow at one o'clock. Thank you. 

17 (The jury adjourned at 4:51p.m.) 

18 THE COURT: Okay. The jury is out of the room. 

19 Let's take these additional ten minutes to make some records. 

20 I want to just put on the record the challenges for cause. 

21 Plaintiff made a challenge for cause for Juror Mitchell, Juror 

22 Mascella, Juror Ching, Juror Banzon, Juror Norman, Juror King 

23 and Juror Reeder. 

24 Defense counsel stipulated to remove Juror Ching and 

25 Juror King for cause. Defense asked to remove Juror Escalante 
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1 for cause and with Defense counsel indicating they had 

2 concerns about Escalante's ability to understand English. 

3 Other than Ching and King, no other challenges for 

4 cause were granted by this Court. 

5 Let's go onto the --the objections that were made 

6 contemporaneously during the course of the opening statements. 

7 The first objection was Plaintiff had on the screen 

8 and there was a discussion of both the complaint and the 

9 answer and there was -- and then the change in the answer, I 

10 guess it was the second amended answer to Plaintiffs' -- I 

11 mean answer to Plaintiffs' complaint. The Defense counsel 

12 contemporaneously objected. If you'd like to make a record on 

13 that? 

14 MR. MICHALEK: Yes, Your Honor. We filed a motion ln 

15 limine on responsibility avoidance. The arguments that the 

16 Plaintiff were making were exactly that, that we were denying 

17 responsibility then for some monetary reason or because it was 

18 in our greatest benefit to do so, whatever the argument was, 

19 that we suddenly changed our denial into an admission. 

20 As the Court knows, complaints and answers are simply 

21 just pleadings that the parties file. The initial answer --

22 the Plaintiff -- I'm sorry-- the Defendant neither defends 

23 admits or denies because, you know, that's typically what 

24 every defense counsel files. It's just a pleading. It 

25 shouldn't have been used against the Defendant. It was 
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1 certainly improper to do so. It -- it goes to essentially 

2 responsibility avoidance. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. By the Plaintiff. Mr. Simon, as 

4 you're probably aware, you were allowed to show the instrument 

5 complaint for the sole purpose, which you ultimately did, of 

6 the fact that the Defendants initially denied liability and 

7 subsequently admitted liability, and that's where we stand at 

8 this point. You were specifically directed at sidebar that 

9 you could not argue -- well, or say to the Jury that they were 

10 avoiding responsibility and I don't recall that you did at 

11 that point. Would you like to make a further record? 

12 MR. SIMON: No. That I -- I didn't use that wording 

13 at all. And, I guess, if I could get some clarification from 

14 the Court, what avoiding responsibility, you know, really 

15 means because at the end of the day, you know, going forward, 

16 because at the end of the day they're denying they're 

17 responsible for certain aspects of this case and I don't know 

18 how I can be limited to --to use that theme because that's 

19 what they're doing. That's what the facts are. So I -- I'm 

20 not sure what "avoiding responsibility" means, and just so 

21 they can tell me what their concerns are so I 

22 THE COURT: My concern is I never I never want to 

23 put ln the jury's mind-- and I guess it's how you present to 

24 the Jury. I mean, I believe that a person legally has the 

25 right to challenge the Plaintiffs' complaint, you know, file 
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1 an answer and go to litigation. And I think it's improper to 

2 leave in the minds of the jury that the whole litigation 

3 process with the Defendant not accepting responsibility from 

4 the get-go, I think that's lmproper. 

5 I think they have a right to challenge your case. 

6 That's kind of what I'm going-- I understand that -- I think 

7 it's relevant in the pleadings that they initially denied 

8 liability, now they've admitted liability, that's why I let 

9 you bring that up in your openings. Did I help clarify a 

10 little bit? 

11 MR. SIMON: Well, a little bit. I mean --

12 THE COURT: It's not improper for them obviously to 

13 file an answer. It's not improper for them obviously not to 

14 settle the case. I don't want it put into the jury's mind 

15 that it lS somehow improper. I mean, what it comes down to, 

16 this lS a dispute in the value of this case. 

17 MR. MICHALEK: Let me let me help Your Honor out 

18 and counsel so he can sort of understand this. He's making 

19 his openlng statement where he's saying specifically that the 

20 Defendant knew right at that point in time that she had caused 

21 injuries, she had caused all of these damages to the 

22 Plaintiffs. Well, certainly that's not the case. 

23 The Defendant knew at the time of the accident she 

24 caused an accident. She didn't know what the pre-existing 

25 conditions of the Plaintiffs were. She never met them before. 
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1 And so for Defendant to insinuate she had all of this 

2 knowledge, she knew when she had caused an accident she knew 

3 she had caused all of these damages, and then she's denying 

4 liability -- oh, and then she's admitting liability for all of 

5 it. See, that's --that's how you go to avoiding 

6 responsibility. 

7 You make a chain of assumptions that the Defendant 

8 knew things about the Plaintiffs' condition, their medical 

9 bills, the treatment, the disc injury right at the time of the 

10 accident; that somehow that was magical information that she 

11 had. Well, she didn't. There's nothing wrong with the 

12 Defendant going through litigation and that's why we're here. 

13 We're here because we denied that they -- the damages 

14 are what they say they are. Sure, there was an accident. 

15 Sure, there was some damage that we were responsible for; 

16 others we are not responsible for. That's why you're here. 

17 That's why the jury is here. 

18 But to insinuate that we had some special -- or my 

19 client had some special knowledge at the time and now she's 

20 denying liability because of that special knowledge is, I 

21 think, improper. Oh, yeah. Good point. It flips the burden 

22 of proof that we're trying to say, you know, from their --

23 instead of their proving their case, we're having to disprove 

24 ours. 

25 MR. SIMON: I don't think I went into any of that, 

KARR REPORTING, INC. 
148 

00476



1 but I think at the end of this case I'm golng to say that 

2 they're responsible for this. 

3 THE COURT: And I believe that's fair game. 

4 MR. SIMON: Okay. Thank you. 

5 THE COURT: Again, I think that you understand or I 

6 hope that I'm making myself clear enough as far as the 

7 distinction. You know, I've had plaintiffs want to come ln 

8 here and say, you know, try to make it seem as though it was 

9 lmproper somehow or nefarious on behalf of the defendant to 

10 file an answer and ultimately be involved in litigation. 

11 Certainly that is not the case. They have a right to do that. 

12 MR. SIMON: Sure. 

13 THE COURT: I do recognize -- so I think you do 

14 understand the distinction, I hope. 

15 MR. SIMON: Yeah. I -- I get that point. 

16 THE COURT: If not, I'll try to clarify myself. 

17 MR. SIMON: I didn't do any of that. 

18 THE COURT: No, I don't believe that you did. I 

19 think that was Defense's further concern. Am I making myself 

20 clear enough? Some times it's clear to me, but it's not as 

21 clear to everyone else. 

22 MR. MICHALEK: It's clear to me, Your Honor. 

23 THE COURT: Okay. So if it comes up again, please 

24 ask me and I will try to clarify myself even further. Okay. 

25 And agaln, I want to indicate that Plaintiff did not 
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1 make the argument in openlng that, I guess, Defense counsel 

2 was concerned about. 

3 There was another objection made by Defense counsel 

4 as far as Plaintiff referring -- Plaintiff counsel referring 

5 to things as "silly". The Plaintiff redirected and did not 

6 use that phraseology again after the objection when the Court 

7 indicated or asked him to use a different phrase. I don't 

8 know that that phrase in and of itself lS lmproper. It's just 

9 it was changed by the Defendant -- I'm sorry-- by the 

10 Plaintiff. 

11 The Defendant also objected to the use of the word 

12 "it" by Mr. Simon. I think the Defense counsel believed that 

13 somehow by uslng the word "it," it implied the existence of 

14 lnsurance, which would be impermissible. 

15 MR. MICHALEK: Yes, Your Honor. Their -- the -- I 

16 don't recall it. It flashed on my screen, but it said 

17 something to the effect of the Defendant's here because it 

18 wants to protect its money. I -- I apologize if I don't have 

19 the exact wording of it. Maybe if Mr. Simon would be happy 

20 enough to put his openlng on the screen, I could get the exact 

21 wording, but that's how I remember it. It, Defendant is 

22 trying to protect its money. 

23 There were three serlous violations, not just that, 

24 but the hired gun and the golden rule arguments, all of which 

25 since I've been practicing in this jurisdiction for 20 years 
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1 have been prohibited and it was shocking to me during the 

2 openlng statement that Mr. Simon, who I have known for the 

3 past 20 years Slnce I started with Mr. Dubrinsky [phonetic], 

4 would go through ln opening statement and make arguments which 

5 are specifically precluded from being argued in closing 

6 argument. 

7 The bell cannot be un-rung. It was -- it was at 

8 least eight seconds that I saw after the Court made its 

9 determination that --

10 THE COURT: [Inaudible . ] 

11 MR. MICHALEK: -- on the hired gun that the 

12 Plaintiffs went through and just listed all of the rest of 

13 that argument under there, all of the things that were 

14 lmproper that Mr. Simon was golng to make. 

15 And just so I know the Court has to get on with it 

16 and-- and so I'll keep this brief. Those three things 

17 combined, the bell cannot be un-rung. It was improper and 

18 we're movlng for a mistrial. 

19 THE COURT: Okay. Counsel? 

20 MR. SIMON: Your Honor, I never used the word "hired 

21 gun," first of all. So that is a-- a misstatement of fact. 

22 What the wording was lS that his services were for sale, which 

23 his services are for sale because you can hire him for his 

24 servlce to be an IME doctor. 

25 And then at that point you -- they made their 
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1 objections. You said it was more argument, not that it was 

2 improper, but that it was argument, and then we moved on and I 

3 raced through the rest of the slide to get to the next 

4 subject. So nothing was ever left up there or discussed. 

5 What was the other one? 

6 THE COURT: It. 

7 MR. SIMON: And the golden rule argument, I mean, I'm 

8 not sure where that comes from. I never did ask this jury to 

9 put themselves in the place of this Plaintiff. I never did 

10 that and I don't believe that these are golden rule arguments. 

11 THE COURT: Okay. 

12 MR. MICHALEK: Your Honor, he did not race through 

13 the slide. It was up there a good eight seconds. I would ask 

14 the Court, Mr. Simon can provide his opening statement to the 

15 Court, that slide. The Court can look and see exactly what 

16 the jury saw, which was eight seconds worth of impermissible 

17 arguments. As I say, it-- the-- the-- we ask that be 

18 preserved. 

19 The bell can't be un-rung with that. There were 

20 multiple violations of clear Nevada case law that should not 

21 have been presented ln the opening statement, it was 

22 presented, and we have --we have to request a mistrial. I'll 

23 leave it at that. 

24 THE COURT: All right. I'm golng to deny the request 

25 for mistrial at this point. As far as the use of the word 
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1 "it," it was really just in passlng by the Plaintiffs' 

2 counsel. The Plaintiff was -- it was brought to the 

3 Plaintiffs' attention and I don't recall that wording being 

4 used for the balance of the openlngs. 

5 And, indeed, there was really no instruction glven by 

6 the Court because I was kind of at a loss as to how to 

7 instruct the -- the Jury, and I believe Counsel agreed without 

8 further calling attention to the use of the word "it" and what 

9 it could possibly mean. 

10 As far as the dollar Slgns on the screen, I -- I did 

11 seem them. The dollar signs went across approximately the 

12 length of, you know, the length from left to right and then a 

13 portion of another line underneath that, but I -- I don't 

14 think it was really up there that long to really prejudice the 

15 Jury. I mean, I just saw it quickly in passing. 

16 As far as affecting the community, the Plaintiffs 

17 that was sustained and the Plaintiff was directed to change 

18 his opening and the jury was instructed to disregard the 

19 statements by Plaintiffs' counsel. 

20 As far as Dr. Duke, the hired gun, the reason I 

21 didn't allow it lS because I did feel that it was argument 

22 more argument, which would be more appropriate in closing. 

23 MR. MICHALEK: And-- and my objection, I'll just 

24 just so we have the record, I -- I object as not just lmproper 

25 argument --not just argument, but improper argument. There's 
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1 a Nevada Supreme Court case I'm happy to provide Your Honor a 

2 copy of that. And I suggest we take up the issue of the 

3 medical bills tomorrow maybe 

4 THE COURT: Can we -- do you guys want to get here a 

5 little before 1:00? 

6 JY[R. MICHALEK: Yes, I was golng to suggest that. 

7 Maybe like 12:30? 

8 THE COURT: 12:30 lS fine. 

9 JY[R. SIMON: Sure. All right. 

10 THE COURT: That's fine with me. Did I cover 

11 everything for today? I think --

12 JYrR. MICHALEK: I believe so. 

13 THE COURT: I think I got all the objections. 

14 JYrR. MICHALEK: Sure. And it wasn't just "it" as the 

15 Defendant corporation, it was "it" protecting its money, which 

16 I think it is an assertion that there's an lnsurance company 

17 behind my client as opposed to her, you know, herself. 

18 THE COURT: Thank you. 

19 JYrR. SIMON: Thank you, Your Honor. 

20 JYrR. MICHALEK: Thank you, Your Honor. 

21 THE COURT: Oh, I want to go over this real quick 

22 because if you want to look into it. As far as what I can 

23 tell from the computer on the issue of the sub rosa video, 

24 it's indicated in the February 3, 2015 notes from the hearing 

25 that that is when Mr. Simon brought up the fact that he was 
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1 glven a video the week before. Defense counsel indicated that 

2 it had been disclosed in December. Mr. Simon said he only 

3 received it the week before, so that would be the end of 

4 January. 

5 As far as what I see, a stipulation to continue the 

6 trial was filed November 5, 2014. In that stipulation, 

7 assuming it includes evidence, it says the last day to 

8 supplement documents, witness list was January 9, 2015. 

9 I think there was a dispute at the February 3, 2015 

10 hearing about whether or not the video, assuming that it was, 

11 in fact, disclosed in December, who it was turned over to. 

12 Mr. Simon says it wasn't him and it was turned over to prlor 

13 counsel. I show that Mr. Simon showed up as attorney in this 

14 case in August 30, 2013, so it should have been [inaudible] to 

15 him. 

16 MR. BAIRD: Mr. Lavigne has never withdrawn. 

17 Everything we've ever served in this case has gone-- like all 

18 the disclosures went to Mr. Lavigne, that no one has ever said 

19 we're not getting your stuff, so we had no idea there was a 

20 problem. 

21 THE COURT: That's what I can tell from the court 

22 record, which is -- without going and looking at the video and 

23 seeing the argument, that is likely the reason that I ruled 

24 the way I did because it was turned over -- even using the 

25 later date of January 9, 2015, it was disclosed subsequent to 
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1 that date. 

2 MR. BAIRD: Well, it was disclosed ln December. It 

3 was -- it was disclosed. 

4 THE COURT: Oh. There was a dispute about that ln 

5 the hearing. 

6 MR. BAIRD: Okay. All right. We can work it out 

7 later. 

8 THE COURT: At least that's what I can tell from 

9 what's written in the minutes. 

10 MR. BAIRD: Okay. Sure. And if we can show Your 

11 Honor it was provided in December, you will reconsider. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: I'll think about it. 

MR. BAIRD: Okay. Thank you. 

MR. SIMON: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

(Court recessed for the evenlng at 5:06p.m.) 
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